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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THAHBRETEAEEENRR N

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Operating Results

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue in the amount of
approximately HK$477,789,000 (2017: HK$13,039,000). The
Group’s revenue was principally derived from the exploration,
production and distribution of natural gas segment of approximately
HK$477,784,000 (2017: HK$12,630,000). During the year, the
money lending business segment only contributed revenue of
approximately HK$5,000 (2017: HK$409,000). The sales of food and
beverages segment did not contribute any revenue to the Group
(2017: Nil).

The Group recorded a profit attributable to the owners of the
Company in the amount of approximately HK$27,544,000,
compared to a loss of approximately HK$235,510,000 during last
year. It was mainly due to the revenue recognition of natural gas
sales under the Group’s Kashi Project during the year. Earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company was 0.29 HK cents
(2017: loss per share of 2.48 HK cents).

Business Review

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas Segment

The Petroleum Contract

The Company'’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, China Era Energy
Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China Era”) entered into a
petroleum contract with China National Petroleum Corporation
("CNPC") for the drilling, exploration, development and production
of oil and/or natural gas within the specified site located in North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, PRC (the “Petroleum Contract”).
The Petroleum Contract is for a term of not exceed 30 consecutive
contract years commencing 1 June 2009.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THAHEFSEHEEEEBRR I

Under the Petroleum Contract, China Era shall apply its appropriate
and advanced technology and management expertise and assign its
competent experts to perform exploration, development, and
production of oil and/or natural gas within the site. In the event that
any oil field and/or gas field is discovered within the site, the
development costs shall be borne by CNPC and China Era in the
proportion of 51% and 49%, respectively.

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The management has devoted much of its resources during
the exploration period in exploration and research studies. In March
2015, China Era issued formal application to CNPC to apply for a
two-year extension of the exploration period of Kashi Project beyond
the original deadline of 31 May 2015. On 6 December 2017, China
Era and CNPC entered into a supplemental and amendment contract
(the “Supplemental Contract”) to amend the Petroleum Contract
by extending the First Phase exploration period to 5 December 2017
(i.e. the day immediately preceding the date of the Supplemental
Contract). The terms of the Supplemental Contract further provided
that (inter alia): (1) China Era has satisfied the investment
commitment in respect of the First Phase exploration period; (2) The
Petroleum Contract shall proceed to the Second Phase exploration
period on the effective date of the Supplemental Contract of 6
December 2017; and (3) the costs incurred by CNPC on Kashi Project
between 1 June 2009 and 5 December 2017 shall be aggregated
with the pre-contract costs incurred by CNPC on the project. The
costs incurred between 1 June 2009 and 31 December 2015 was in
the amount of approximately RMB651,653,000 (mainly including
three completed wells, reconstruction of natural gas processing plant
and the operating costs incurred during the period), and the costs
incurred by CNPC between 1 January 2016 and 5 December 2017
shall be confirmed by both parties within 12 months after the
effective date of the Supplemental Contract. During the year, the
cost incurred by CNPC between 1 January 2016 and 31 December
2017 in the amount of approximately RMB94,042,000 was
confirmed. All the costs incurred by CNPC shall be recovered in kind
out of the crude oil/natural gas produced from any oil/gas field inside
the cooperation site. Save as the changes expressly stated in the
Supplemental Contract, the other terms and conditions of the
Petroleum Contract shall remain unchanged.

No development and production activity were carried out under the

Petroleum Contract, as the pilot production during the exploration
stage is not regarded as production activities.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHGEREEENRRI I

The Status of Overall Development Program

In December 2018, the Overall Development Program (“ODP") was
approved by CNPC internally and proceeded into the finalization
stage. During the year, the Company and CNPC were given to
understand that the approval requirement of the ODP by the National
Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC") formerly imposed
on the Kashi Project (being an oil and gas sino-foreign cooperation)
will be relaxed. The cancellation of ODP approval requirement was
formally announced by the State Council of the PRC under its circular
No.6 of 2019 (E1#%[2019]635%) on 27 February 2019. Before the
announcement by the State Council, the development period of any
oil/gas field will start from the date of the completion of the ODP,
which comprises a formal development engineering plan, backed up
by survey results and relevant studies, together with a full economic
analysis and time schedule of the development operations. Under the
new regime, the ODP approval is no longer required and will be
replaced by a filing system. We are still waiting to see the
implementation procedures regarding the new ODP filing system.
The directors expect the progress of Kashi Project will be expedited
by the new procedures, and the development period should start
immediately after the ODP finalisation and filing.

The Status of Gas Sales Agreements

As at 31 December 2018, the directors are still negotiating the Gas
Sales Agreements (“GSA") with CNPC and expect that the
negotiation will finalise and proceed to the signing of the formal GSA
in the year 2019. The terms of the GSA include the quantity of
volume commitments, gas quality, price terms, delivery obligations
and delivery point, etc. As at the date of this annual report, most of
the commercial terms of the GSA have reached the stage of in-
principle consensus. Although the GSA has not been signed up to
the date of this annual report, China Era has reached in-principle
consensus with CNPC on the volume and price of the natural gas
pilot production since project commencement up to 31 December
2018. China Era recorded revenue of approximately HK$466,880,000
during the year ended 31 December 2018. Up to the date of this
annual report, the Group has received settlement from CNPC in the
amount of approximately HK$83,449,000 and the directors of the
Company expect that CNPC will settle the remaining account
receivables within the year of 2019.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THAHEFSEHEEEEBRR I

Segment Performance

During the year, this operation together with the natural gas
distribution operation in Karamany, Xinjiang contributes revenue of
approximately HK$477,784,000 (2017: HK$12,630,000) and the
segment profit before income tax was approximately
HK$163,523,000 (2017: loss before income tax HK$216,136,000).
Impairment losses on intangible assets and exploration and evaluation
assets in the amounts of HK$95,000,000 (2017: HK$162,000,000)
and HK$36,000,000 (2017: HK$39,000,000) respectively were
recognised during the current year, as the carrying amounts of the
intangible assets and exploration and evaluation assets of the Kashi
Project exceeds the recoverable amount which was determined with
reference to the valuation report produced by APAC Asset Valuation
and Consulting Limited (“APAC"), an independent valuer.

The results of operations in exploration, production and distribution
of natural gas segment and costs incurred for exploration and
evaluation assets acquisition and exploration activities are shown as
below:

(@)  Results of operations in exploration, production, and
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distribution of natural gas segment Eyi
2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue W= 477,784 12,630
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEMA (6,466) (6,793)
Other income E A A 368 147
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HMAX (24,520) -
Operating expenses HEAT (28,737) (12,083)
Depreciation e (3,532) (2,485)
Impairment of exploration and evaluation )% & 57 & E R E
assets (36,000) (39,000)
Impairment and amortisation of intangible #E2& & B N i
assets (212,727) (162,000)
Impairment of goodwill SR ERE] (1,151) (6,000)
Finance cost & pk 2N (1,496) (552)
Results of operations before income tax  Br TSR AIAL & 345 163,523 (216,136)
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THAHBRETEAEEENRR N

(b)  Costs incurred for exploration and evaluation assets acquisitions
and exploration activities

Exploration cost EVERA A

Information of Gross Contingent Resources on Oil and
Gas Field

The reserve evaluation was conducted in accordance with Petroleum
Resources Management system, an internationally recognised reserve
standards and guideline, the details of information were set out in
the Appendix V of Competent Person’s Report to the Company’s
circular dated 3 December 2010. There is no material change of
assumption as compared with previous disclosed in the Competent
Person’s Report, except for the delay in the production schedules due
to the delay in the ODP finalisation and the signing of the GSA.

The following table summarised the estimates of Group’s 49% net
entitlement interests of the gross contingent resources in the
Petroleum Contract:

As at 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018

FRAZAELD

Pilot-production activity during the year
As at 31 December 2018

These contingent resources are quantities of oil and gas estimated, to
be potentially recoverable from known accumulations by application
of development projects, but which are not currently considered to
be commercially recoverable due to one or more contingencies. The
risks associated with these contingent resources included the
following matters: (i) there being no definitive GSA; (ii) the ODP
having yet to be filed; and (iii) the field being situated in a remote
location.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHHSRAEEENRR D

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The Group did not record any revenue from the sales of food and
beverages business segment in 2018 and 2017. The segment loss
before tax was approximately HK$1,990,000 (2017: HK$1,939,000).
No revenue was recorded during the year, mainly due to the Group'’s
intention to reduce reliance on sales of food and beverage. We will
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resource as and when required.

Money Lending Business

During the year, the Group generated revenue from the money
lending business operated by its indirect wholly owned subsidiary,
Zhong Neng Finance Ltd., a licensed money lender under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Cap.163, Laws of Hong Kong) of approximately
HK$5,000 (2017: HK$409,000). The segment loss before tax was
approximately HK$241,000 (2017: profit before tax of HK$207,000).
The Group continued to adopt a stringent credit policy to mitigate
the credit risk arising from the money lending business, resulting in a
decrease in the revenue when compared to last year.

Financial Review
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$65,931,000 (2017: Nil). The cash
and cash equivalents of the Group were approximately
HK$68,084,000 (2017: HK$171,926,000). The Group's current ratio
(current assets to current liabilities) was approximately 109.6%
(2017: 55.7%). The ratio of total liabilities to total assets of the
Group was approximately 32.2% (2017: 27.6%).

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has outstanding convertible
notes with the principal amount of HK$679,670,000. These
convertible notes are due in 2041, does not carry any interest but
carry the right to convert the principal amount into a maximum of
4,045,654,761 ordinary shares of the Company (assuming the
exercise in full) at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share (subject
to adjustments). During the year, no convertible note was converted
to ordinary shares of the Company.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THAHBRETEAEEENRR N

In June 2015, the Group commenced legal actions against the
holder(s) of the convertible notes but in May 2018, a Consent Order
was granted by the Cayman Court regarding the discontinuation of
the litigation, as disclosed in the section headed “Litigation” in this
annual report.

Charge of Assets

Account receivables in the amount of approximately
HK$439,596,000 as at 31 December 2018 were pledged as security
for bank borrowings (2017: Nil).

Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK dollar
and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the Group. The policy of the
Group for its operating entities operates in their corresponding local
currencies to minimise currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its
exposure for the time being, did not enter into any derivative
contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks during the year.
However, management will monitor foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure if
necessary.

Capital Commitments

The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$104,834,000 and HK$118,650,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: HK$141,254,000 and HK$123,900,000) in respect of
exploration and evaluation expenditure and capital contributions in a
subsidiary respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018 and 2017.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total workforce of 41
(2017: 35). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
work performance, working experiences, professional qualifications
and the prevailing market practice.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHHSRAEEENRR D

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE REGARDING THE
MODIFIED OPINION AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING

Revenue Recognition of Kashi Project

The revenue of HK$477,784,000 recorded for the year ended 31
December 2018 comprised: (a) the revenue from Kashi Project in the
amount of approximately HK$466,880,000; and (b) the revenue from
the Group’s Karamay pipelined gas project in the amount of
approximately HK$10,904,000.

The revenue of HK$466,880,000 recognised in the Group’s results
for the year ended 31 December 2018 relates to the sales of natural
gas by the Group’s Kashi Project to CNPC during the period since
2009 up to the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year
2018, the revenue of gas sales of Kashi Project was recognised by the
Group because the volume and unit price of gas sales and the
allocation of value-added tax (VAT), operating cost and profit sharing
were agreed, signed and acknowledged by the Group and CNPC
Tarim Qil Field Company by way of natural gas allocation tables (the
“Natural Gas Allocation Tables”). Based on the legal advice
obtained by the Company from its PRC legal advisers, these Natural
Gas Allocation Tables, when read together with the records and
minutes of various meetings held between the Group and CNPC
during the year 2018, the Petroleum Contract dated 22 December
2008 and the 1st Supplemental Contract dated 6 December 2017,
should have conferred legally-enforceable right to the Group
regarding the profit sharing of Kashi Project under the Petroleum
Contract between 2009 and 2018. For this reason, the Company
formed the view that revenue on the project should now be
recognised.

Regarding the cash settlement by CNPC of the profit sharing
entitlement of the Group, CNPC has already settled the entire
preliminary profit sharing of 2018 gas sales either in cash or by
offsetting of payables owed to CNPC. Regarding the cash settlement
on profit sharing between 2009 and 2017, the Company was given
to understand that payment would be made upon the signing of a
second supplemental and amendment contract to the Petroleum
Contract (the “2nd Supplement Contract”) which is expected to
take place in 2019.
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During the audit, the auditors requested the Company to provide the
properly executed agreements (i.e. the finalised and signed 2nd
Supplemental Contract and GSA) as audit evidence, which the
Company cannot provide because they are still under negotiation
and have yet to be signed. Based on the Company’s understanding,
because the Company cannot produce the finalised and signed 2nd
Supplemental Contract and the GSA, we cannot satisfy the auditors
beyond doubt that the gas sales and profit sharing figures are free
from any subsequent adjustments. Although the management
cannot provide evidence to address the auditor’s concern, we took
the view that the risk of subsequent adjustment of gas sales and
profit sharing figures is insignificant, principally due to the existence
of the Natural Gas Allocation Tables and the actual cash payment of
the 2018 profit sharing proceeds by CNPC.

Impairment of Intangible Assets and Exploration
and Evaluation Assets

During the audit, the recoverable amounts of the intangible assets
and the exploration and evaluation assets relating to Kashi Project
(the “Kashi Project Assets”) were determined by the Directors
based on value-in-use calculations, which involved the making of
certain assumptions in preparing cash flows projections for the cash
generating unit including, amongst other factors, (a) the submission
of the ODP before 31 December 2019; (b) the commencement of the
development stage and commercial production of the oil and natural
gas field after the submission of the ODP; and (c) payment by CNPC
of the sales of natural gas from 2009 to 2017 before 31 December
2019.

As explained above, payment of the profit sharing of gas sales proceeds
from 2009 to 2017 is expected to take place in 2019 when the 2nd
Supplemental Contract is finalised and signed in due course. The ODP
approval requirement was formally abolished pursuant to State Council
of the PRC under its circular No. 6 of 2019 (B3 [2019]6 57 ) issued in
February 2019 and we are still waiting for the implementation
procedures of the new filing system. That having said, the Company is
of the view that these assumptions are reasonable due to the latest
positive development, namely: (a) the actual cash payment by CNPC of
the profit sharing of gas sales proceeds from 2009 to 2017; and (b)
while the implementation procedures of ODP filing is yet to be
published, the Company has reviewed the wordings of State Council
Circular No.6 of 2019 and it is clearly stated that the approval
requirement is being relaxed and the filing power is delegated to lower-
level authority, meaning that the new filing system is going to make the
project faster and easier rather than the other way round.
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During the audit, the auditors requested the Company to provide the
properly executed agreements (i.e. the finalised and signed 2nd
Supplemental Contract and GSA) and the details of new ODP filing
procedures, which the Company cannot provide. Based on the
Company’s understanding, because the Company cannot produce
the finalised and signed 2nd Supplemental Contract, the GSA and
the details of new ODP filing procedures, we cannot satisfy the
auditors beyond doubt that the estimated future selling price and
estimated volume of gas to be extracted were reasonable and the
ODP would be submitted to the relevant government authority
before 31 December 2019, and the development stage and the
commercial production of the project can start after the submission
of the ODP. Although the management cannot provide evidence to
address the auditor’s concern, we took the view that that the risk of
the project ultimately being incapable of being put to commercial
production is insignificant, principally due to the negotiation progress
on the 2nd Supplemental Contract and the GSA and the wordings of
the State Council Circular No. 6 of 2019.

Further details regarding the impairment losses on
Kashi Project Assets

The impairment of the carrying value of Kashi Project Assets was
principally due to the adjustment of gas sales price from RMB1.094
to RMB0.9856 per cubic meter (being the latest gas unit price agreed
with the Group’s customer) and the adjustment in capital expenditure
budget in the latest draft of ODP. The management made
assumptions including the timing and development plan of the latest
ODP (including the capital expenditure for additional wells and
related facilities), commercial production and signing of GSA, future
gas prices, productions costs (fixed and variable) and production
volume forecast (based on the Group’s previous estimation on the
natural gas resources of the Kashi field).

Except for the change in post-tax discount rate from 18% (equivalent
to pre-tax discount rate of 23.1%) in 2017 to 16% (equivalent to
pre-tax discount rate of 19.5%) in 2018, the adjustment of gas unit
price from RMB1.094 to RMB0.9856 per cubic meter as explained
above and the adjustment of capital expenditure budget from
US$74.0 million to US$92.6 million as explained above, there were
no other significant changes in the value of the inputs and
assumptions used in the valuation as compared to those previously
adopted. The change in discount rate was mainly due to the decrease
in firm specific risk factors from 10.67% to 7.67% resulting from the
significant progress made by the Kashi Project during the year.
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In arriving at the fair value, the valuer has considered three generally
accepted approaches, namely, market approach, cost approach and
income approach. Since market approach is not appropriate (as no
similar transactions in the public market can be identified as
comparable transaction) and cost approach is not appropriate (as it
ignores the economic benefits of the ownership of the business), the
valuer has adopted income approach — discounted cash flow
method to assess the fair value of the project. A discount on lack of
marketability (DLOM) of 30% was applied in the fair value
assessment, which is in line with market practice. In compliance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, during an impairment testing of
assets (other than financial assets), the recoverable amount should be
the greater of (i) the fair value less costs of disposal, and (i) the value-
in-use (VIU), which is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Therefore, after assessing the fair value and VIU in the
valuation report, the Company has used the VIU, being the higher of
the two figures, in determining the recoverable value of the Kashi
Project Assets.

Going Concern Basis

The Company’s net current asset/liabilities position has greatly
improved from net current liabilities of HK$258,872,000 as at 31
December 2017 to net current asset of HK$52,830,000 as at 31
December 2018. The Company has therefore prepared its financial
statements on a going concern basis on the assumptions that: (i)
CNPC will make payment of the profit sharing proceeds between
2009 and 2017 before 31 December 2019; and (i) the Group will be
able to successfully persuade its contractors not to insist on
repayment of the construction cost payables before the Company
receives the profit sharing proceeds from CNPC.
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During the audit, the auditors requested the Company to provide the
properly executed agreements (i.e. the finalised and signed 2nd
Supplemental Contract and GSA) and written confirmations from
contractors not to demand repayment of the construction cost
payables before the Company receives the proceeds from CNPC, as
audit evidence which the Company cannot provide. Based on the
Company’s understanding, because the Company cannot produce
these requested evidence, we cannot satisfy the auditors beyond
doubt that CNPC will make payment of the profit sharing proceeds
between 2009 and 2017 before 31 December 2019 and the Group
will be able to successfully persuade its contractors not to insist on
repayment of the construction cost payables before the Company
receives the profit sharing proceeds from CNPC. Although the
management cannot provide evidence to address the auditor’s
concern, we took the view that CNPC will make the profit sharing
proceeds in 2019 and the contractors will not to insist on repayment
of the construction cost payables before the Company receives the
profit sharing proceeds from CNPC principally due to the negotiation
progress of the 2nd Supplemental Contract and the GSA and the
relationship between the contractors and CNPC.

The Audit Committee’s view

During the audit process, the audit committee discussed with the
management during which the management presented the financial
highlights and conveyed the key audit matters expressed by the
auditors including the audit modifications. After considering the
circumstances surrounding the audit modification and the
management’s presentation, the audit committee concurred with the
management’s judgments regarding revenue recognition of Kashi
Project, the valuation of the Kashi Project Assets and the going
concern basis of the financial statements.

Action plan to remove audit modification

In 2019, the Directors will continue to make efforts to follow up with
the signing of the 2nd Supplemental Contract and the GSA, the ODP
filing and the settlement of the profit sharing proceeds on the project
from 2009 to 2017, and to continue to negotiate with banks and
other financiers, financial institutions and potentially interested
investors with the view to obtaining new funding whether by way of
equity or debt financing. Once the ODP is filed for record as required,
the 2nd Supplemental Contract and the GSA signed and the 2009 to
2017 profit sharing proceeds from CNPC are received within 2019 as
expected by management, the Company expects that any perceived
uncertainties on the audit modifications could be addressed by the
end of year 2019.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 20 March 2019, the Group entered into a loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) with the controller of a substantial shareholder
of the Company (the “Lender”) regarding the continual provision of
a loan facility of up to HK$45 million by the Lender to the Company
a 5% per annum, 3-year loan facility. Under the Loan Agreement,
interest shall start to accrue with effect from 1 January 2019, and the
Lender reserves the overriding right to demand early repayment.

The Lender, being the controller of a substantial shareholder of the
Company, is a connected person of the Company as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)..
The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
noted that the terms of the Loan Agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the Company and the Lender and
are of the view that the terms of the Loan Agreement are normal
commercial terms or better from the Company’s perspective, are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and substantial
shareholder as a whole. Accordingly, the Loan Agreement is fully
exempt from all disclosure, annual review, circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

PROSPECTS

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas

Subsequent to the signing of the Supplemental Contract to extend
the exploration period and the settlement of the Litigation with the
vendors of Kashi Project, significant progresses were made on Kashi
Project during the first half of 2018, including the obtaining of a new
RMB100 million banking facilities secured by the account receivable
under the Petroleum Contract, the final preparation of the ODP filing
and the final negotiation of GSA. Further details of the business
update on the Kashi Project are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 August 2018. In December 2018, the ODP
was approved by CNPC internally.
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The project details and key milestones for the Kashi Project were
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 3 December 2010. In
essence, the Petroleum Contract covers an exploration period of up
to six years (which was already extended by CNPC pursuant to the
Supplemental Contract), a development period and a production
period. The development period shall commence on the date of ODP
filing/approval and end on the date of the completion of the
development operations required by the ODP to be completed during
the development period. The end of the development period also
signifies the commencement of the commercial production of the
project and the commencement of the production period, which runs
for fifteen years for an oil field and twenty years for a gas field
(subject to extension with the approval of the government). Further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company regarding the
implementation timetable of such development operations as and
when the ODP is submitted for filing and when there is any
significant progress of the Kashi Project.

The Company’s management will continue to follow up with CNPC
with the view to expediting the ODP filing and GSA finalisation and
signing thereby accelerating the commencement of commercial
production of Kashi Project, and will continue to follow up with
potential lenders and investors with the view to secure additional
debt and/or equity funding to finance the further development of the
project.

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The management has taken a cautious approach to manage the
operations of the food and beverages segment. The Group will assess
the value and performance of this segment from time to time, and
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resources as and when required.

Money Lending Business

The Group established this new segment in the second half of 2015.
The management will continue to look for high quality borrowers in
order to minimise the risk of default. The management has taken a
cautious approach in money lending business in view of the Group’s
current financial position.
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Appreciation

Looking forward, we will continue our proven strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholders. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to a team of
devoted staff for their outstanding service and to our shareholders
for your continued support.

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang, aged 61, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 2009 and was elected as the chief executive
officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his study for
Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has nearly 35 years of working
experience in exploration and exploitation of petroleum industry. He
acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Qilfield Company (the
“Shengli Oilfield”) and was awarded the Top-notch talent from
China Petroleum & Chemical Shengli Oilfield. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as an alternative director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong on 29 June
2015.

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Gu Quan Rong, aged 54, joined the Company as a non-
executive director in September 2014. He obtained a bachelor degree
and a post-doctoral degree in Organic Chemistry from Nanjing
University in 1987 and 1996, respectively, and a doctorate degree in
mineral processing from China University of Mining & Technology,
Beijing in 1993. He is an expert in chemistry, energy, biodiesel and oil
and gas. Between 1996 and now, he held the positions of Associate
Professor, Professor and Vice Dean for Scientific Research in Nanjing
University, and had been a Visiting Scholar in Wayne State University,
United States and University of Regina, Canada and a Senior Research
Fellow in University of Alberta, Canada. He had worked with leading
oilfields in China such as Daging Qilfield, Shengli Qilfield and Dagang
Qilfield, and been the Chief Scientist of energy companies in North
America.

Ms. Ngan Mei Ying, aged 37, joined the Company as a non-
executive director in April 2017. She graduated from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong in 2003 with a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and has over 10 years of professional
experience of auditing in international audit firms and accounting
experience in public listed companies. Ms. Ngan resigned as a non-
executive director on 31 October 2018.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zong Ketao, aged 52, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2015. He is a lawyer qualified to
practice law in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). He holds
a master degree in law from University of International Business and
Economics, China and a bachelor degree in law from Lanzhou
University, China. He has extensive experience in litigation and
arbitration, company law and laws relating to investment, finance,
energy, mining and capital market. From 1989 to 2000, he joined
Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company Limited, an associate of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”), as a member of
their in-house legal department. From 2003 to 2004, he was
appointed as the senior legal supervisor of another group company
of Sinopec. Since 2005, he started his own private legal practice and
joined various law firms in the PRC as a partner.

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying, aged 50, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in January 2016. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of the Certified Practicing
Accountants Australia. He holds a master’s degree in business law
from Monash University, Australia and a bachelor’s degree in
commerce accounting from The Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. He has extensive experience in finance and accounting, and
has worked as financial controller in various private and public listed
companies in Hong Kong, Singapore and the United States.
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Mr. Lee Man Tai, aged 42, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in January 2016. He graduated from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong in 2000 with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration in financial services from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2010. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of professional experience in
accounting and auditing. He worked in audit firms between 2000
and 2006, and has occupied the positions of chief financial officer,
financial controller and company secretary of several listed companies
in Hong Kong between 2006 and 2016. He is an independent non-
executive director of Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 1581) which is listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a
representative for type 1 and 6 regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

EEZRE

FNRKE 257 R_T—RF-AMAKR
ABHEBIIFATES - TR _FTTFF
EREREMASBY MRS IMERE LB -
ER-_E-ZFREEEEIARBTIREER(S
BRI AR - RABEGHMRGER
SERRBEFFAREIMAGERESR - K
YEETREF T EER BT FHEELR - BN
—EEEFEE_TTRFHESHBEMER
PIER - YR —_TTREFE_T—RFEEE
ZHELTRARALEERMBE  MHRERA
AME - RREASEZERERAR(ENK
51581 MBI FRITEE AR RRER
PrET - RBEBEOESNEZFLHE K
Bl BRI RE1VERFORAZRERBHRRK

China Energy Development Holdings Limited R EIRERBIZIZRERAF » Annual Report F3#; 2018 21



Corporate Governance Report

ERERME

Overview

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the importance of
and benefit from good corporate governance practices. We believe
that improvement in corporate governance not only assists the
Company in effective supervision and control on its business
operation, but also attracts investment from international institutional
investors, thereby creating and enhancing shareholder value.

1. Corporate Governance Practices

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the code provisions on
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the "CG
Code”). Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group has complied itself with all CG Code except for the
following:

(@  Inrelation to A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO") should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual and the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and CEO should be clearly established and set
out in writing. During the year, Mr. Zhao Guogiang is the
CEO of the Company. During the year, the position of
chairman is vacated and the Board intends to identify
satisfiable candidate to fill the vacancy.

(b) In relation to E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the the annual general meeting (the
“AGM") to answer questions raised up in the meeting.
During the year, the position of chairman is vacated, but
other Directors and members of the audit committee
were present at the AGM to answer questions from
Shareholders.
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() In relation to A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election while all directors should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. For the year under review, all independent non-
executive directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems for
the Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders and
assets of the Company at all times. Such systems aim to help
achieving the Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets
and maintaining proper accounting records for provision of
reliable financial information. However, the design of the
systems is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement in the financial statements or
loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls in area of financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions for risks
management as well as physical and information systems
security. The chief financial officer (the “CFO") has reported to
the audit committee from time to time during the year, in
conjunction with key findings identified by the external
auditors, findings and actions or measures taken in addressing
those internal controls. The audit committee in turn reports any
material issues to the Board. The Board, through the audit
committee, also sets targets for and reviews plan and progress
on continuous improvement work of the Company’s internal
control system with the CFO on a periodic basis.
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Board of directors

(a)

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
a total of five members including one executive director,
one non-executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors. Members of the Board have different
professional and relevant industry experiences and
background so as to bring in valuable contributions and
advices for the development of the Group's business. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has three
independent non-executive directors representing not
less than one-third of the Board, and two of them are
qualified accountants.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each incumbent independent non-executive director
of their independence to the Group. The Group
considered that all independent non-executive directors
meets the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines. The names of the
directors and their respective biographies are set out on
pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

(b)
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The Board meets periodically with the management to
discuss the Group's strategies development and to review
the business operation. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The names of the directors during
the financial year and their individual attendance of are
set out below:

Name Board
e gzg
Mr. Zhao Guogiang Bl

(CEO) (GieE9) 8/8
Dr. Gu Quan Rong BREET 8/8
Ms. Ngan Mei Ying RS Yan

(resigned on (R=Z—\F+A

31 October 2018) =+—HEME) 6/7
Mr. Zong Ketao mRELE 8/8
Mr. Cheng Chun Ying BIRESLE 8/8
Mr. Lee Man Tai EXREHE 8/8

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Each of the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing their independence from the
Company in accordance with the guidelines on director
independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such directors to be independent.

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group.
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(f)  The major issues which were brought before the Board ) FRAREEFFSREZTIZZ=EE
for their decisions during the year include: (i) proposals B O)BRABEWE ®RENEW
related to potential acquisition, investments, or any BRERFAZ 2B RG)FIEL
significant capital expenditures; and (ii) formulation of ERBENEMEVERE Z48 MU
operational strategies and review of its financial KA ZREL 4| E o

performance and results and the internal control system.

()  The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that the (9 EFTEEBEEEXTABERANRHE
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls FTZ2 BRI NEREE T - ARBE AR
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the RZIRERRNRREE °

Company’s assets.

(h) The Company has set up three Board committees, (hy ARABERL=-EEEZEZ 8
namely, the audit committee, the remuneration EZLEE FHEESRIEEE
committee and the nomination committee, to oversee B UEBAEEETHE S
particular aspect of the Group's affairs, details of which % FFER T XREEMmET

are set out in the relevant sections below.

()  The Board has delegated the day-to-day management () EFZCHERAEBECZEEEBRE
and operations of the Group’s businesses to management REBZHAFEKEERER - B
of the Group. Major corporate matters that are EeRAEREEERECETED
specifically delegated by the Board to the management ¥EEEE GRMBHRAHES
include the preparation of financial statements for Board GRTIENEL  BTEEERM
approval before publishing, execution of business CEBKRBLEEZ  HTEEZA
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, HEEE N EBEERTHE - A&
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls ErEBETEARE - FAIRIRG

and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

() When the Board delegates aspects of its management () WEEFZREEERDEEENT
and administration functions to management, it has B ESCRBTEECED
given clear directions as to the powers of management, BHHBEMIES  EREREEIEEA
in particular, with respect to the circumstance where MESSELER  UEKEEBAE
management shall report back and obtain prior approval REA R BEL R E 3R] L ) &
from the Board before making decisions or entering into ARG ESSRLUEZER -

any commitments on behalf of the Company.

(k) In relation to A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors have (k) BEBECEEBATRIFEALSK  TE
participated their own professional training by attending EECRELEME REHE
seminar/programme/reading relevant materials in relation EHEENEKBEMREEN 2
to the business on directors’ duties. HHE B FMEEER -
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() The Company has attached much importance to the risk
management about directors’ liabilities and has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

(m) The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own Code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors of the Company. All incumbent Directors
have confirmed following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code through the year.

Board diversity policy

On 27 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. On 31 March 2016, the
Company revised the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company.
In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and
educational background or professional experience. All Board
appointments are based on merits and considered against a
variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(a)

As at the date of this annual report, the Chairman of the
Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang was elected as the
CEO on 29 December 2009.

The CEO provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the CEO is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meeting.

The directors focus on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
Directors are in charge of the Company's day-to-day
management and operations. The directors are also
responsible for assisting the CEO in developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and
procedures, business objectives, and risk assessment for
the Board'’s approval.

Non-executive Directors

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.
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7. Remuneration of Directors

(a)

The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 23 September 2005 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include the following:

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company;
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v.  toreview and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

vi.  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
remuneration committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun
Ying who acts as the chairman of the remuneration
committee, Dr. Gu Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr.
Lee Man Tai. The majority of members of the
remuneration committee is comprised of independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings held during was
set out in section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 25 of this annual report. The
remuneration committee had reviewed and approved the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
was set up by the remuneration committee on the basis
of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group's share option scheme as described on page
47 of this annual report is adopted as the Group’s long-
term incentive scheme.
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Nomination of Directors

The Company has established a nomination committee since
27 March 2012 with written terms of reference and amended
on 27 August 2013 as disclosed on the Company’s website.
The primary functions of the nomination committee include the
following:

to review the structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
the members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships on merits and
against objective criteria, with due regard on the benefits
of diversity on the Board, especially to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the CEO, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, diversity and experience in the future; and
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v.  to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
to review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually.

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of
directors with a diversity of skills and experience. The selection
and proposed appointment of the Directors are submitted to
the nomination committee of the Company for consideration
prior to Board approval, and the re-election of Directors is
conducted in accordance with the Articles. The criteria of
assessing a candidate include his/her ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to participate in the affairs of the Company
including the attendance of Board meetings and serving on
committees, to bring business experience to the Board and to
contribute to the Board diversity. If the candidate is proposed
to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director, his/
her independence shall be assessed in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall be
evaluated in assessing his/her suitability.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
nomination committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun Ying who
acts as the chairman of the nomination committee, Dr. Gu
Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Lee Man Tai. The majority
of members of the nomination committee is comprised of
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of nomination committee meeting held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on a
named basis, at meetings held during was set out in section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on page 25 of this
annual report. The nomination committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board, made
recommendations on the changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and assessed the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

v. BHEFEXEZITIEEE (W&
BIREHNEFERRTEFTENX
BZ T EBRBIEZAFERR
REMRBIREZEER  RBFREX
ERMEWEEMER

ARRRRBERERK - MRLAEZTE
REERER EEE - ERERERAEE
FERXTESFSIER - AXREXTA
RARAREGES  MEREFARR
ERAMAETT - REAZFGRERER
ELERRERBEITENSERR T
PR (BERLFEFEERETZES
LR ER - MIKEAERERERE
RBIYIFFRITES  HBUMARRLEN
MAE TR E RS - ERFEIREA
ERAEE - ANGERERE  BEREK
KEREERER -

BEEAFREY RERZBEGZKEERR
BRELXE(REBZEGIR) BEE2E
Bt FRBEERFXHRELE - RERE
BE@XENKERARE ZEILIFNTT
B=-

REZBEENFARTEZNREEIMA
AN ACBEERENLFEEHNFR
F25RTEERTA —F1-RBERE
SEMNESS2EE - RERAMK : 5L
EFEENEPRLES  MESARFN
EERR - WRBEZBIFNTESNE
I e

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF » Annual Report F#; 2018



10.

Corporate Governance Report

Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, BDO Limited, the auditor of the
Company, received HK$925,000 in respect of audit service
provided to the Group. The auditors’ remuneration has been
duly approved by the audit committee and there was no
disagreement between the Board and the audit committee on
the selection and appointment of auditor.

Audit Committee

(a)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited R EIRERBIZIZRERAF » Annual Report F3#; 2018

The audit committee of the Company was established on
30 January 2002. The written terms of reference of the
audit committee were revised on 27 March 2012 and 31
March 2016 as disclosed on the Company’s website. As
at the date of this annual report, the audit committee
comprises one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lee
Man Tai (chairman of the audit committee), Dr. Gu Quan
Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying. Mr.
Lee Man Tai and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying are certified
public accountants for many years. In the opinion of the
Board, the members of the audit committee have
sufficient financial management expertise to discharge
their duties.

The number of audit committee meetings held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on
a named basis, at meetings held was set out in section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on page 25 of
this annual report.

The audit committee is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements of accounts
and to provide recommendations and advices, including
but not limited to the followings:

i. to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
audit fee and other terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of the external auditor;

10.

EEREAHRE

B B 35 BN

RABBERE » ARG EME S (12
S MESERAREHAAER
IR 2 % BBR 75 URER 925,000 74 7T © 1% 8k
MBEEAEZZESEIE MES
CTHERZZESTIERSTEZEEM L
WhED I

BEREEY

(a)

AANFRR-_ZET_F—A=+HK
VUEZZES EAEEBES
B "R E——F=A=-++H
- RF=ZRA=+—H{BF]
HERARAREILIRE - BEAE
WA FEREEEHR —BIIENT
EER-—ABUIERITESAN
ERmAEE(BEZEZEEERE) -
BEEREL - RENELAEREIRE
ok EXRAEEREIRELE A
EXFRBINESHAM -EFE
RE BREZESNBEEBEMZ
M EREERBITARE -

ERREENFARARITZIERIA
K PARE &7 ARk 2 fERIAK B 5%
HER . BRAFHRE2H8EE

RS ] —& -

BERRECRES S RREEERH
REVBHRRCEE L EREE
TRATIZEEREZRER

i BUONEREEINEE  EFE
ERBRIEHEZERLAEES
ROEZ - BUEINEZEE A
BB A B RN - BEEEL
BEErEE

33



Corporate Governance Report

ERERME

34

Vi.

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations and ensure co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services. For this purpose, external auditor
shall include any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Committee should report to the Board, identifying
any matters in respect of which it considers that
action or improvement needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

in reviewing, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board, the Committee should focus particularly
on:

a. any changes in accounting policies and
practice;

b.  major judgmental areas;

¢ significant adjustments resulting from the
audit;
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d. the going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

e.  compliance with accounting standards;

f. compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

g. the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of such
transaction on the profitability of the Group;

h. whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group's financial
statements and whether the disclosures give
a fair view of the Group’s financial
conditions;

i. any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

j. the cashflow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board;

vii. in regard to vi. above:

a. members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s auditors; and

b. the Committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the
Company'’s accountant, compliance officer or
auditors.

Vii.
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vii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xii.

to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary);

to discuss with the management the risk
managements and internal control systems and
ensure the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal
control systems and to review the Company’s
statements on risk management and internal
control systems (which are included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the Board;

to consider any findings of major investigations on
risk management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company and to review monitor, the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to
ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports for
inclusion in the Group's interim and annual reports;
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Xiv. to consider the appointment of any person to be a
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors
and accounting staff (including internal control
department) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of
them:;

xv. to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management’s response;

xvi. 1o review the external auditor's management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

xvii. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor’'s management letter;

xviii. to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in (and as
amended from time to time) Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules; and

Xix. to consider other matters, as defined or assigned
by the Board from time to time.

(d) In addition to the above tasks regarding to the
Company'’s financial statement, the audit committee
should also to consider any other matters, as defined by
the Board from time to time; and to conduct interviews
with any director, manager, financial controller upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure.
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(e)  The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard investments of the
shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

(f)  The Group’s financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2018 and the year ended 31 December
2018 have been reviewed by the audit committee.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chun Kau has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since June 2014. Mr. Chan is a solicitor in Hong
Kong. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board
procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholder Rights

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s articles of association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all
circulars to shareholders issued during the financial year ended
31 December 2018, and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. As
such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the forthcoming
AGM of the Company will be voted by poll, and the poll results
will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on or before the business day following the
shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, is available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at
shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors. During the year, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

11.

12.

() ERZEGNTEBENARASE
BITZ BRI NEEEESE - U2

HERERRZIRENARBEE -
fH AEEBE-_T-N\FA=1H
t/\flﬂ&ﬁi_f NFE+=A
=t HALEFEZMBRRCAE
VE(EE%E@O
DNAWE
RIRIRSEEE —F—MFERNAREER
RAINRAME - RELERBERER

b REMEEEEE  UEREFER
FrEFRBERAR - MAIRRGITESE
e RAFE  RELCETEEISN
R IR - ATR T A BT R A

R SRR

BERZEMERBRAE EFRERE
THRERRZERFENARAZHEHBE

RARR - BRAZRRERRZEN KR
RRZEFHABENEBE_T-N\F

TZA=Z+ B UEMERFENEHRRR
ZEBEA - AR K GHRIETEAL -

BIE FHRAISE 13.39@0) (48 - BER
BREREG ZEMRREGBEUIRE SR
17 At REEEARARRFEAF AL R
EHRMENMAEREREBURESNE
TFRR MBERRZERENBRERS
BzeEBRYZATRADFBI R R
Frifub & o

ARBZBERAGRHUBREEEGE
BYE BEFEETRMERZES  #
WEBEehRER B 2R (BRER
B RAIRRZEgZEMKE) BRI EE
RERRG LZRMA - EEAZEH(BHE
HRERNES) NEORBERTARKR

K& RS « WAER @ BEXH M E
KEB -

BRBAEIERAR QT » Annual Report F# 2018



Corporate Governance Report

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the written requisition (the “Requisitionists”) to
the Board or the Secretary of the Company (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association. Such
Requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of the requisition. If within 21 days of the deposit of the
requisition the Directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM,
the Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionists as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionists by the Company.
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The Articles of the Company provides that no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose that person for
election and also a notice by that person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
registered office or principal place of business in Hong Kong at
least seven clear days before the date of the general meeting.
Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director at the AGM, the following
documents must be validly served at the Company within the
period specified in the Articles, namely:

(1) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution to elect
a nominated candidate as a Director at the AGM;
(2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of the

candidate’s willingness to be elected;

(3) the nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

(4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.
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Investor Relations

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Dividend Policy

The Company adopts a dividend policy, taking into
consideration all circumstances including the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends: (i) the current
and projected financial performance of the Company; (i) the
growth and investment opportunities; (iii) other macro and
micro economic factors; and (iv) other factors or events that
the Board may consider relevant or appropriate from time to
time. The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and the Articles.

Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.
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The appropriateness of the preparation of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
largely depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, which in particular include: (i) CNPC
paying the proceeds from sales of natural gas related to prior
years (the “Proceeds”) before 31 December 2019; and (ii) the
Group being able to successfully persuade the contractors not
to insist on repayment of the construction cost payables before
the Company receives the Proceeds from CNPC. However, the
Company has not obtained any written confirmation that
CNPC will pay the Proceeds before 31 December 2019 and the
contractors will not insist on payment of the construction cost
payables until the Company receives the Proceeds from CNPC.
These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubts about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Save as disclosed above, the
Directors are not aware of any other events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Directors have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis,
taking into consideration the various factors set out in the
section headed “Additional disclosure regarding the modified
opinion and impairment testing” on pages 11 to 15 of this
annual report.
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The directors present herewith the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Principal Activity and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries include
sales of food and beverages and money lending business in Hong
Kong, and exploration, production and distribution of natural gas in
PRC, the details of which are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Company Ordinance”), including a fair review of
the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2018, and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the section headed “CEQ’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. The above section
forms part of this report of the Directors.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 60 to 61.

The state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2018 is set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 62 to 63.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 200.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Investment Properties

Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in
Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year,
together with reasons thereof, and of the Company’s share options,
are set out in Note 29 and Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 64 and Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2018 are set
out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE
The largest supplier A HIER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ER BT

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Composition of the Board

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer and
alternate director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Gu Quan Rong
Ms. Ngan Mei Ying (Resigned on 31 October 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zong Ketao

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying

Mr. Lee Man Tai
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Directors
retiring at the upcoming AGM will be eligible for re-election. Further
details of the Directors’ re-election will be set out in a circular of the
Company dispatched together with the notice of the AGM.

Directors’ Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Interest and Short Position in Shares

As at 31 December 2018, none of the directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section “Share
Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2013 and the
Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of and permission to
deal in the shares to be issued under the share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 26 June 2013, the Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme to replace the expired share
option scheme adopted 28 January 2002 and as amended on 2
November 2006.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted, the Board of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible
participants to subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option was granted and exercised during the year under
review and there was no outstanding share option as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Position

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

of the Company

Total number

RAEXTROREBRG ZHFR

Approximate

Number of  of sharesand percentage of

Number of underlying underlying issued share

Name of Shareholders Nature of interests shares shares shares capital

1HE ROk  HEBITRE

RRARHE EatE REE ROBE HERGAER BHES

U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Beneficial Owner 1,860,000,000  4,045,654,762  5,905,654,762 62.13%
Company Ltd. (Note 1) EnlEEA

(F&E1T)

Cypress Dragons Limited Beneficial Owner 970,000,000 - 970,000,000 10.20%
(Note 2) (Hz2) ERERA

Wang Guoju (Notes 1 & 2) Interest of controlled 2,830,000,000  4,045,654,762  6,875,654,762 72.33%

TEHE (M1Rk2) corporation
XA 2w
Notes: BT
1. Based on the disclosure of interest (“DI") filings, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group 1. BEERFE(ERERE ) K% UK Prolific

Petroleum Group Limited (UK Prolific]) #»
1,860,000,000 & A~ 2 &I A& 19 ([ B 48 1) R A& 58 &
679,670,000/ 7L = T/ — F R HR Al 2 f 22 9% ([ AT 4
BRER)RHEAES  ZFURREETTERNE
R 8540 A& % 4,045,654,762 B i 1h - B (ESE

Limited (“UK Prolific”) is interested in 1,860,000,000 shares of the Company
(“Shares”) and convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) in the principal
amount of HK$679,670,000 due in 2041 not carrying any interest with right to
convert the Convertible Notes into 4,045,654,762 Shares at a conversion price of
HK$0.168 per Share. Based on the DI filings, UK Prolific is wholly owned by Mr.

Wang Guoju. &M% 5 0.168 T © IR IFEEZ B FE R UK Prolific &5
TEELREZEHE -
2. Based on the DI filings , Cypress Dragons Limited (“Cypress Dragons”), a 2 BB EEN  mTEE L2 SEENTIE

controlled corporation wholly owned by Mr. Wang Guoju, is interested in
970,000,000 Shares.

% Cypress Dragons Limited ([ Cypress Dragons|) #
970,000,000 A A tn h & 12 ©
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Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
and Conflict of Interests

None of the directors were interested in any business apart from the

Group'’s business which competed or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.

Related and Connected Party Transactions
Details of the significant related party and connected transaction of
the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in Note 34 to the

financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Corporate Governance
The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 42 of this
annual report.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the Company. All
incumbent directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code through the year
under review.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff,
and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
businesses and creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Working Conditions

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy in accordance with
the requirement set out in the CG Code. The Company recognizes
that the Board diversity is an essential element contributing to the
sustainable development of the Company. In designing the Board’s
composition, the Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional experience.
A Board Diversity Policy, with the aim of enhancing the quality of the
Board's performance by diversity, was adopted on 27 August 2013
and revised on 31 March 2016.

The Group encourages its staff to participate in external seminars and
lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of legal,
compliance, financial accounting and reporting, and market industry
practices. Through these types of training, we believe that the Group
can increase its efficiency and productivity while overall reduction of
risk and uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional development
training for the Directors and senior management to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills which includes seminars and
workshops, updates on regulatory requirements and development
and corporate governance practices.
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Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment
to the employees. In order to maintain a healthy and safe working
environment, the Group has upgraded and maintained tools, office
and IT equipment.

Environment Protection

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group. The
Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

Community Involvement

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staff to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence and
compliance with all significant legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are encouraged
to give their opinions regarding the environmental, social and
governance policies of the Group.
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This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with safety
working environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued in due
course.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by directors and chief executives of the Group is
currently in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31
December 2018.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The audit
committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the
CG Code. The Group's audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, who is of the opinion that such statements comply with
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2018 have been audited by BDO Limited.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B BT E

|IBDO

B5E : +852 2218 8288
8K : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EETHER1115R
k&I 251&

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT

HOLDINGS LIMITED
(PEBERBZZERBERLTF)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 199,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and whether the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

1.

54

Revenue recognition

Included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018 is revenue in the
amount of HK$466,880,000 related to the following sales of
natural gas. As disclosed in Note 5(iv) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has recognised revenue from
the sales of natural gas arising from its interests in a Petroleum
Contract during the exploration and evaluation period from
2009 to 2018. The Petroleum Contract was entered between a
subsidiary of the Company and China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC") in relation to a project for the drilling,
exploration, exploitation and production of oil and natural gas
in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the People’s Republic of
China (the “Project”). During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group recognised the sales of natural gas related to
the gas delivered during and before year 2018 for the Project
as the Company’s directors considered that based on their
discussions with counterparty and information available to
them during the year, the conditions for revenue recognition
were met during the year. The directors provided us
information available to them and represented that they had
agreed with the counterparty the terms of the sales of natural
gas delivered during and before year 2018 and both parties
agreed to formalise these agreed terms of sales of natural gas
by entering into agreements. However, up to the date of this
report, the properly executed agreements are yet available to us.

There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we
could adopt to obtain sufficient audit evidence to corroborate
with the aforesaid representation from the directors. As a
result, we were unable to determine whether the revenue was
recognised in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Reversal
of the revenue and corresponding account receivables would
reduce the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2018 and its
net profits after tax for the year then ended, and affect the
elements making up the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

2.

Impairment of intangible assets and
exploration and evaluation assets

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018 are intangible assets and exploration and
evaluation assets with carrying amounts of HK$1,250,254,000
and HK$474,224,000 respectively (collectively referred to as
the “Assets”). As disclosed in Notes 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, the intangible assets
represent interests in the Project. Exploration and evaluation
assets represent costs directly associated with exploratory wells
(drilling cost and others) that are capitalised.

As detailed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, as
at 31 December 2018, an impairment assessment was carried out
by the directors of the Company on the Assets. The assessment
indicated the carrying amounts of the intangible assets and
exploration and evaluation assets exceeded the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (the “CGU") to which these
assets were assigned. Accordingly, impairment losses of
HK$95,000,000 and HK$36,000,000 were recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2018 on intangible assets and exploration
and evaluation assets respectively. The recoverable amount of the
intangible assets and exploration and evaluation assets has been
determined by the directors based on the CGU'’s value in use. The
cash flows estimation in the value in use calculation was based on
certain assumptions including the estimated future selling price
and the estimated volume of gas to be extracted. In the value in
use calculation, the directors also assumed the Overall
Development Program (“ODP"”) would be submitted to the
relevant government authority before 31 December 2019, the
development stage and commercial production of the Project will
start after the submission of the ODP.

Given the Project has been delayed for a number of years, it
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty as to when the
commercial production can be started. The directors were
unable to provide us with sufficient supporting documents to
support the reasonableness of the above assumptions
underlying the value in use calculation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B/ RS

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

2.

56

Impairment of intangible assets and
exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we
could adopt to assess the reasonableness of the assumptions in
the impairment assessment. As a result, we were unable to
determine whether the recoverable amounts and impairment
provisions of the Assets were appropriately stated. Any
adjustments to the carrying amounts of the Assets would have
a consequential effect on the Group’s financial position as at
31 December 2018 and on its financial performance for the
year then ended, and the elements making up the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

We encountered similar limitation of scope during the course
of audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Group’s 2017
Consolidated Financial Statements”). Together with the
matter detailed in our audit report dated 28 March 2018, we
did not express an opinion on the Group’s 2017 Consolidated
Financial Statements. Such unresolved limitation of scope
brought forward from last year has possible effect on the
comparability of the current year’'s figures and the
corresponding figures.

Uncertainties relating to going concern

The directors of the Company have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis, the
appropriateness of which largely depends upon the outcome of
the underlying assumptions, as detailed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, which in particular include (i)
CNPC will pay the proceeds from sales of natural gas related to
prior years (the “Proceeds”) before 31 December 2019; and (ii)
the Group will be able to successfully persuade the contractors
not to insist on repayment of the construction cost payables
before the Company receives the proceeds from CNPC.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

3.

Uncertainties relating to going concern
(Continued)

However, the Company has not obtained any written
confirmation that CNPC will pay the Proceeds before 31
December 2019 and the contractors will not insist on payment
of the construction cost payables until the Company receives
the Proceeds from CNPC.

There were no alternative audit procedures that we could
perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether the Group can
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, we were unable to
determine whether it is appropriate for the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the going concern
basis be considered inappropriate, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the carrying amounts of the Group's
assets to their net realisable amount, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company also have prepared the Group’s
2017 Consolidated Financial Statements on a going concern
basis. In our audit on the Group’s 2017 Consolidated Financial
Statements, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to assess the reasonableness of the application
of the going concern basis and among other matters that exist
in last year, and did not express an opinion in the report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B/ RS

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B BT E

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms
of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for

BB BB RGRE M BERRARE
2RI
B EARREESRHMARRK LTS

EHENY BERBECHGAVBWMRETE
T YHARBERE REEFZZEK
R ABEES BTIUER— 1%‘%3)%%%
AREEMBN BEMTRAREZAS
AERMEMALTEEEELEES -

A - ERARE FT%’EEE:‘%Z%‘VH —EfiFT

Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to  #iEH - EHEARENEENES NEZEE -
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an LA BB E@tE '}",/:,\ij%#&%%%ﬁﬁff?%ﬁﬁ
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. LA o
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's  REEFEE -I-Eﬂi ‘A<ﬁ¥ SHAMBE S EE ST
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we  BIY([=fBI]) EEBURN B£E  HESECD
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the $ET}§?E'J)E?‘T,HJ‘E BEEME-
Code.
BDO Limited BRI GERERETMEERERAA
Certified Public Accountants BFE SR
YU Tsui Fong REF
Practising Certificate no. P05440 HEE E 55 P05440
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019 B ZE-NF=RAR=TANAB
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FaZzHENER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—_Z— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

Revenue

Cost of inventories sold

Other income

Selling and distributing expenses

Staff costs

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Fair value (loss)/gain of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value loss of investment properties

Impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets

Impairment and amortisation of
intangible assets

Impairment of goodwill

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the
year

60

Notes

M
Uz 6
BEEGFERA
E A 7
HERDHEBAY
S8 TKA 9
SEHERS
Yz - BMEARSEZITE

15
BAVEEFTABRZE/ME
EZAFEE(EIB), IS
K"EWHE N EEEIE 16
BEMFHEEERE

17
A ERE R

18
EESERIE] 19
HhE & X
BB A 8
MRETEBANER, () 9
s8R (AX), HER 10
REERER,(F8)
Hip 2wz
HETRKEFTI BEEZER
ZIEB
TG RERINETSEE
ZIER =%
ZiN/NEIEZ =N
FEIE AR HE 2
AEE2HEKZELE

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
477,789 13,039
(6,466) (6,793)
20,133 399
(24,520) =
(14,964) (11,299)
(3,579) (4,524)
(3,840) (2,761)
(13,064) 15,678
(10,849) =
(36,000) (39,000)
(212,727) (162,000)
(1,151) (6,000)
(24,059) (31,364)
(8,474) (7,002)
138,229 (241,627)
(111,041) 6,774
27,188 (234,853)
(73,284) 119,307
882 (761)
(72,402) 118,546
(45,214) (116,307)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to owners of the
Company for the year
— Basic (HK cents)

— Diluted (HK cents)

T oML ER, (BE)
ZA/NCIEZE N
FEE R

THIEME 2R R

ZAUNETE 2SN
FRER RS

ROTEEAREREE
SREF(HE)

— EARCGEM)

— #BOB)

Notes

B EE

12

FazHElER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—ZF— \G&+_-_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
27,544 (235,510)
(356) 657
27,188 (234,853)
(45,740) (116,203)
526 (104)
(45,214) (116,307)
0.29 (2.48)
0.25 (2.48)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

n‘l'.R (=¥ UZ%;I*~R§

At 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E T
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
M FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB K& 15 26,603 31,178
Investment properties BEYE 16 57,600 =
Exploration and evaluation assets RN EEE 17 474,224 369,087
Intangible assets mLEE 18 1,250,254 1,523,512
Goodwill S 19 - 1,151
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE &= 21(a) - 99,673
1,808,681 2,024,601
Current assets REEE
Account receivables FEU IR K 22 439,596 =
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEBETABR ISR
profit or loss BE 23 61,476 74,540
Other receivables, deposits and H U sRIE - Rl MFER
prepayments IE 24 33,736 78,412
Cash and bank balances B MIRITE 68,084 171,926
602,892 324,878
Total assets BMEE 2,411,573 2,349,479
Current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables and accruals At ST R IE R TSR IR 25 444,768 536,902
Amount due to a shareholder Bt —Z R R B 26 39,363 40,626
Amounts due to non-controlling JE A~ FEI3E IR e 25 FRIR
interests 26 - 6,222
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 65,931 =
550,062 583,750
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE (86 FE 52,830 (258,872)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAZBRABER 1,861,511 1,765,729
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR IIR R

At 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\FE+=-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Bt aE FET FAET
Non-current liabilities FnBAE
Other payables HoAth & < I 25 143,736 -
Convertible notes EEES 28 71,467 64,489
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBAE 21(a) 11,649 =
226,852 64,489
Net assets EEEE 1,634,659 1,701,240
Equity R
Share capital A& X 29 475,267 475,267
Reserves EE 1,147,086 1,214,193
Attributable to owners of the RN EEE AEIL
Company 1,622,353 1,689,460
Non-controlling interests AR 12,306 11,780
Total equity AR 1,634,659 1,701,240
These consolidated financial statements were approved and ZBEZEEW_T—NF=A -+ BHENFE
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019. HIBZEREMBRE
Zhao Guogiang Gu Quan Rong
i B 5 BEE %
Director Director
EF s
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e ER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE—_Z— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

At 1 January 2017

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income:

Exchange differences on
translation foreign
operations

Total comprehensive
income for the year
Acquisition of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

Effect of adjustment on
adoption of HKFRS 9
(Note 2(a)A())

At 1 January 2018
(restated)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive
income:

Exchange differences on
translation foreign
operations

Total comprehensive
income for the year

At 31 December 2018

64

S
AR (R), /B
RH2EUA -
BN EBAEN
£2
AEE2ENEEE

VeI

Ro®-tF+2A
=t-8

RABREHBREER

BoOREB TS
(GEXE)

R-2-NF-A-A
(w85)

AEREHN/(BR)

Hit2EKA

BEBHNEBNER

EE

FEERERALE

R=E-NF+=A
Sir=

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRERAER
Convertible Non-
Issued  Contributed Share notes Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
B4 T8
BRTRE  RARR ROEE REERE BERE  RHER M OFERER  RREE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET TET TEx T TET
(Note 32(a))  (Note 32(b))  (Note 32(c)
(MiE32@)  (HaE3am)  (P7E32(0)
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (223019)  (851,604) 1,805,663 - 1,805,663
- - - - - (2355100 (235510 657 (234,853)
= = = = 119,307 = 119,307 (761) 118,546
- - - - 119307 (235510)  (116,203) (104) (116,307
- - - - - - - 11,884 11,884
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (103,712) (1,087,114) 1,689,460 11,780 1,701,240
- - - - - (21,367) (21,367) - (21,367)
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (103,712) (1,108,481) 1,668,093 11,780 1,679,873
- - - - - 27,544 27,544 (356) 27,188
- - - - (73,284) - (73,284) 882 (72,402)
- - - - (73,284) 27,544 (45,740) 526 (45,214)
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (176,996) (1,080,937) 1,622,353 12,306 1,634,659
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Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Interest income
Dividend income
Fair value loss of investment properties
Fair value loss/(gain) of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Exchange gain, net
Reversal of expected credit losses
Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets
Impairment and amortisation of
intangible assets
Impairment of goodwill
Gain on disposal of subsidiary

Operating cash flows before working
capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in account receivables
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= N =1
FABEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—_Z— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-NE B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FETL
REEEBSRE
BRATERANER(58) 138,229 (241,627)
BATIEB EH FA%E -
B 8,474 7,002
W BERZEZINE
3,840 2,761
FEUWA (43) (25)
A& B A (228) (325)
BEWMEZ N EEER 10,849 =
BEAFEEFAEBGCSREEY
RNFEEEE (W) 13,064 (15,678)
i 5% E (256) (49)
TEREEEERD (6,268) =
PR R EEERE
36,000 39,000
B A ERE RS
212,727 162,000
EESERED 1,151 6,000
HENB AR ZKE (12,697) =
AR BEEABHAILE
REeERE 404,842 (40,941)
FEURBR 3R (38 ),/ > (439,739) 26,951
HAEUEIR - 5] & RIEFIA
w (35 0) 9,162 (70,655)
o Ath BB 3B KB ET IR AN 84,280 90,977
REXKFMBzEE 58,545 6332
BAFFEE - (6)
REERMERESTE
58,545 6,326
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE—_Z— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
acquired

Acquisition of exploration and
evaluation assets

Acquisition of investment properties

Interest received

Dividend income

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment (to)/advance from a
shareholder

Repayment (to)/advance from non-
controlling interests

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year, comprising cash and bank
balances

Notes

B aE

REXKESRE
BB - BB MG
35
U BE B S A 7 (F0BR BT
WEEIR &) 36
W ENIR M FH R B E

WA=
BEHAE
NN

REXBDRARESFR

REMEETHNRER
(&) ke —BBRZ
R
(E8), REFERER
B
RITIEEPTISR
BERITEER

ERHE

METDMEENREFH

ReRERRE ORD), 18N
HEE

FHzRERERRE

T A

FRZEERERRE  BF
RERBITHR

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$°'000
FET FET
(411) (630)
= (9,461)
(162,326) =
(68,449) =
43 25
228 325
(230,915) (9,741)
(1,263) 224
(6,222) 6,222
69,903 =
(1,638) =
(919) =
59,861 6,446
(112,509) 3,031
171,926 203,719
8,667 (34,824)
68,084 171,926
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B 35 SR R Y EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS 1. HABREE
ARARZZEZT—FHAOBRER=
R BRAT] o M ER 2 Hik & Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands » & 2 &
KU REBRIREFREFRIIRS
IRAM5611-12F o

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 4 April 2001 under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of
business is located at Units 561112, The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

KRR ABA—_ZEEZ-_F A+ \HiE
NEBBEXSZMERAR ([ EBER
Frl) ER T -

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") with
effect from 18 February 2002.

ARBZ EBREBR/IRERER - MARF
B R B2 £ RREIGR S M B REM
AL 20 7 ©

RMEBVBRELEN(TER
PR E 2R )

() ERMHETRETEBYHR
HEY —R-ZB-N\F-A—

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
described in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018

B4R
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time “T-NEE-T EEUBHREERS
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle adoption of Hong Kong Financial —NERREE KB HRERM
Reporting Standards BBmEERe  BAMBREER
FEME
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in “E-MEE-T FELHEAFER
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle  Associates and Joint Ventures —NEBHEE 2B BELRAR
BHREEM Lz  AERRZR:
FELE
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of EATEREER RO ARBRNRZS
Share-based Payment Transactions E2H 2B ZAEREE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ERUKHEEN SpIA
E9%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers EERBHREED TEAMNKE
F15%
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers EBMBREED TPANWFE(EEE
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15) F15H 2B B BRREENE
15%%)
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property BEQITERNE40 KREYENEER
LA
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance BB (BREBRE IMNEZHRBENNE
Consideration REZEE)-#
BE2R
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-_A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

68

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (see Note 2(a)(A) below) and HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (see Note 2(a)
(B) below) have been summarised below. The other or
amended HKFRSs that are effective form 1 January 2018
did not have any material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (1) classification and
measurement; (2) impairment and (3) hedge
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018 has resulted in changes in
accounting policies of the Group and the
amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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31 December

2018 ZE—\F+=-A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

0] Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

The following tables summarised the impact,
net of tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on the
opening balance of accumulated losses as of
1 January 2018 as follows:

2. EMEBUBBREERN(ER
B REZ2ER ) &)

(a) EH#

A RETEBMBR

HEY —R-B-N\FE-A—
BEXM#E)

A.

ERERUBREERFEIL
— BT HE)

() EBTRZDBRAE
(%)

TREBMEEEELSY
BREERFIREE
2T N\F—H—H
REERRERN

2 (MBpBE) T
HK$’000
FET

Accumulated losses RitEE
Accumulated losses as at 31 December RZE—tF+_A=+—HH

2017 ZitkEsia (1,087,114)
Recognition of additional expected credit ~ t T%I/78 B #ER 5N B B F518

losses (“ECL") on: ([fafEEEE]) -

— Other receivables — HAb U GRIE (21,367)
Restated accumulated losses RZE-N\F—A—HHNEE?

as at 1 January 2018 ZEER (1,108,481)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EMBEBYBREEAN(EE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") IR ZER ) (&)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) BHWHFE BETEBHBR
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) HER —R=ZB-NF—H—
BEMK (&)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A BEHEHREEREIRE
(Continued) — @I EE)
()  Classification and measurement of financial () ZBTAZSBERIE
instruments (Continued) (&)
HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, EBU B REERFE9
classification and measurement requirements HEMBAEGTELSE
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except VF BB ERER

70

for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS
9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous
HKAS 39 categories for financial assets of
held to maturity financial assets, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no
material impact on the Group’s accounting
policies related to financial liabilities and
derivative financial instruments. The impact
of HKFRS 9 on the Group's classification and
measurement of financial assets is set out
below.

DERFTERE  EIE
EURAFEBEF AR
B2V ERERIN Z
AEEERREHEL
ZAFEEEDHSBR
Hh2m K ESER B
FEEMEEmKEZE S
ZBEEZEERKRE

VEGSERNMESE
SR RITERI® o LN
BERTHIREERFE9
FREEBSFERSE
9MABKRIEERS B
BERSBEBEZR
TE o AR HEUE LA
BB EFTERAE3I9RE
EEEZIHemE
E - B EURGRIE B
MAtHESMEE Y
CRMEEMER - HRE
78 B TS RS E B 95R
HAEEEHEsMARE
TSR IAE @5
BRETESEATE -F
B 3R XERIE 95
HAEEeMEEDE
KNET22 5728850 -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain account
receivables (that the account receivables do
not contain a significant financing component
in accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall,
at initial recognition, measure a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs. A
financial asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost (“amortised costs”);
(i) financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or (iii)
FVTPL (as defined in above). The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is generally
based on two criteria: (i) the business model
under which the financial asset is managed
and (ii) its contractual cash flow
characteristics (the “solely payments of
principal and interest” criterion, also
known as “SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9,
embedded derivatives is no longer required to
be separated from a host financial asset.
Instead, the hybrid financial instrument is
assessed as a whole for the classification.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. Hﬂqé,ﬁ TR EER ([ HHB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B REREZRER ) (#)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) HRMFTLIETELBHKER
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) SR —R=_B—-NEFE—F—
BEM(E)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A BEHBHREERFEIR
(Continued) — @I EE)
() Classification and measurement of financial () =Z=@MTAZHENAE
instruments (Continued) (#&)
A financial asset is measured at amortised ECREERRBFTA U
cost if meets both of the following conditions T AR R - B30 3R
and it has not been designated as at FVTPL. ERAFEEG AR
wm RZeRmEELE
SERNARTE ©
e Itis held within a business model whose o ZemEER—ME
objective is to hold financial assets in EEBBAFTE SR
order to collect contractual cash flows; BEKWDRE4HHES
and MmE 2 BB
BE K
o The contractual terms of the financial ° ZEMEEZAN
asset give rise on specified dates to TR E R E B EA
cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion. EAXFTEEASN

AR B BRI
REne -

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it HEBRERBRA
meets both of the following conditions and it Tt B ISR EIR
has not been designated as at FVTPL: NEEEFFAER A
&ﬁﬂ‘ﬁxﬁ&@$ﬁfﬁ
FFAH 2 s A

=
e Itis held within a business model whose s ZEBERER—E
objective is to achieve by both collecting BRWEE LIRS
contractual cash flows and selling MEREESME
financial assets; and EEKB R ZER

BAARA &
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

° The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment'’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. All
other financial assets not classified at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are classified as FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

AR e B 35 SR R Y EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

RAEBHBERELER(HFB
B REZ2ER ) &)

() W RETEBFBHR
HEA —R-ZB-NF—-A—

BEXM#E)
A FBEBUBHEEEREIR
—E@TAE)
() EBTRZDBRAE
(%)
° RERMEEZAN
fERFE R R E A 5
EANAERXM

AR B BRI
REng -

RIVRFERB L FEFIER
BRARER  KAEE
CIRGIE - QEIB: 15 3= 8
fbEEREF 2R E
NFEEZHRES-
ZEERREZEE
th oo PTAA E A £t 3F
DR RREHRARIR
NFEEFAEMEE
Wz EREE B0
BREAFEEAR
@mo WBEABTES
MEE- RURER
B AEER A HE
tiEE S REE (R EM
JTEN AR A
EXRAFEEGFAR
b2 E R RE ) BIR
NFEEFABZE A
RERRETERHRX
NOER A GRHEEACEAE -

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018 73



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B IS SRR B BE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMBERUBHREEN(EFR
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") MB|EEL D @)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) BRMFKIETEBHBER
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) SRR — R=B—-NE—H—
BER(E)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A BEHBHREZEANEIR
(Continued) — @I EE)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () SBITAZHERFE
instruments (Continued) (%)

The following accounting policies would be TN estBR&EEAR

applied to the Group’s financial assets as AEEzERMEE

follows:

FVTPL FVTPL is subsequently measured at BATE RATEEAER
fair value. Changes in fair value, Ei N EEBELATEER
dividends and interest income are s E-ATEE KRS
recognised in profit or loss. RFSMAZEEY

RNERRER

Amortised costs Financial assets at amortised cost are BERA ZEENASRE
subsequently measured using the ERRFRERA®
effective interest rate method. EFTE - FISHA -
Interest income, foreign exchange B 5 e BB R A R
gains and losses and impairment are AESRBRER -
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain RIEHER 2 Ef s
on derecognition is recognised in BN B o

profit or loss.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWNEBPBEREEDN([HE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BiEmEAER |) (&)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) RMAF LBETEBYER
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) HEA —R=ZFB-NF-A—
BEM(E)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A BEUBHREERFEIS
(Continued) — @I EE)
() Classification and measurement of financial () BT AZSBERGE
instruments (Continued) (&)

The following table summarises the original
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and
the new measurement categories under
HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s
financial assets as at 1 January 2018:

TERBAAKER=-F
—N\F-A—-B&EE
REERBEESGTE
AIFE39RRAHER
BIRBBEEE B RE
HERNFEIR 2 H At ER
Al

Carrying amount Carrying amount

Original as at 1January as at 1 January
classification New classification 2018 under 2018 under
Financial assets under HKAS 39  under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
REFBET REE B
ERE398 HEEREIR
REFEET REZTBHE R-ZZE-N\E R=ZZF-N\F
ERIH39Hz  BEEREIR —B—BZ2 —B—H2
TREE REEEH ZHER BREE HREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets held for ~ Held for trading ~ FVTPL 74,540 74,540
trading
BELECSREE FELE BATEERAER
Other receivables and Loans and Amortised cost 77,005 55,638
deposits receivables
HiEWHRIB R & ERREUGIE  BEERA
Cash and bank balance Loans and Amortised cost 171,926 171,926
receivables
He RRITHEER ERREYGE BERA
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMEBMBREERN([EFE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B ERER ) (#)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) BRMFKIETEBHBER
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) HEA —R=ZFB-NF-A—
BEM(E)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A BEUBHREERFEIS
(Continued) — @I EE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) THEEZHE
The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the RNE BT RS 2R

76

Group's impairment model by replacing the
HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the
“expected credit losses model”. HKFRS 9
requires the Group to recognised ECL for
account receivables, and financial assets at
amortised costs, earlier than HKAS 39. Cash
and cash equivalents are subject to ECL
model but the impairment is immaterial for
the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are
measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

WMEEN  AEBEE
ERFEREELE
BRA | MR EYEE
EBEERERA ] - FEY R
SEANFIRREAE
BERNEEGTERSE
39 57 AR 7E 2 Iy ) i B M
RRAR S IZ S ARG E
X BEEEREHE
EpBE-ReRREE
EVXEREEBER
ARR - AR 2R
BITEK -

R IE B S B RS 2R
FoW - BEEBEEEIN
TEAR—IHAEAS
MREAEHEERS
B HEHARREBHE
1218 B REEEZ AL
HEHBHHBEHREER
B8 RQ)ZHEHE
BEEE: LARSRT
BIERTFHART A AT AL
BEHEHEELANESRE
BEE -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group measure loss allowances for
account receivables and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group estimated
expected credit loss rate that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMEBMBREERN([EFE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B ERER ) (#)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) BHWHFE BETEBHBR
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) HER —R=ZB-NF—H—
BEM(E)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A BEUBHREERFEIS
(Continued) — @I EE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) TEEEZHEE)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued) EHEEEBEBZE
(&)

78

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. The
12-months ECLs is the portion of the lifetime
ECLs that results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECLs. When
determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL,
the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-
looking information. The Group’s debt
investment at FVOCI are considered to have
low credit risk since the issuers’ credit rating
are high.

MREMEFEREEM
5 AHEEERNKI2
BEARMEERERE
o 2BEAEREERS
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs
Loss allowances for financial assets measured

at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

80

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(Continued)

(ir)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model

(a

Impairment of account receivables

As mentioned above, the Group
measure ECLs which adopts a life time
ECLs for all account receivables.
Expected credit loss rate is estimated at
0.03%. The loss allowances further
increased by HK$143,000 for account
receivables during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Impairment of other receivables and
deposits

Other financial assets at amortised cost
of the Group includes other receivables
and deposits. Applying the ECL model
result in the recognition of additional
ECL of HK$21,367,000 on 1 January
2018 and a reversal of ECL of
HK$6,411,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

2.

RMBBYBREEN(TFE

B |EER
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RN RETEBHBR
HEA —R-ZB-NF-A—

BEM(E)
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B FRAEEEE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

(b) Impairment of other receivables and
deposits (Continued)

As a result of the above changes, the
impact of the new HKFRS 9 impairment
model results in additional impairment
allowance as follow:

Loss allowance as at 1 January 2018
under HKAS 39

Additional impairment recognised for:
— Other receivables

Loss allowance as at 1 January 2018
under HKFRS 9

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no
impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply hedge accounting in its hedging
relationships.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWEBPBEREEN(HE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B ERER ) (#)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) BRMFKIETEBHBER
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) HEA —R=ZFB-NF-A—
BEM(E)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A BEUBHREERFEIS
(Continued) — @I E(E)
(iv)  Transition (iv) #BF
The Group has applied the transitional AEBBERBEETS

82

provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was
generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new
ECL rules are therefore not reflected in the
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, but are recognised in the
statement of financial position on 1 January
2018. This mean that differences in the
carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained
earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for
2017 does not reflect the requirements of
HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EMBEBYBREEAN(EHE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B ERER ) (#)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) HRPF:] KIETEBHBER
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) HER —R=ZB-NFE—H—
BEM &)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A BEBEHEREEREIR
(Continued) — @I EE)
(iv)  Transition (Continued) (iv) BFE(E&)

The following assessments have been made THFHE IR EE S

on the basis of the facts and circumstances B EERFE IS X

that existed at the date of initial application FERBHE(HXRERB

of HKFRS 9 (the “DIA"): MNEEZEERER
e

e The determination of the business s EBEFBEREE
model within which a financial asset is ZEEE
held;

. The designation and revocation of o 8 MRS R ok 45
previous designations of certain EHETERERE
financial assets and financial liabilities remaEAIERA
as measured at FVTPL; and EEETAEZ

®

e The designation of certain investments e  JEEWIHBIEEER
in equity investments not held for IR NI B A T
trading as at FVOCI. WE RN ER

AE A 2 W
?E?\_ o
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EMEBMBREERN(EE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B ERER ) (#)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) BRMFKIETEBHBER
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) SRR — R=B—-NE—H—
BEM(E)
A. HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments A EEBUBHREERFEIR
(Continued) — @I EE)
(iv)  Transition (Continued) (iv) BE (&)
If an investment in a debt investment had low HMRABEEREZIRER
credit risk at the DIA, then the Group has VIRERBHAARK
assumed that the credit risk on the asset had HEERR  BIXER
not increased significantly since its initial BEZEEZZERR
recognition. B E YRR A

240 -

B. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with B. EBHBEHREERFEISHE
Customers (“HKFRS 15”) — EF&EX e ([EEH
BHREERE15%])
HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction BB R EERE 1558 E
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related REBSFERFE1FESE
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five- R BEGFEE 185
steps model to account for revenue arising from Was AR RE - HBIMEER
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, EEBEISHEL —BERS
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects BERXFREBEFEA DB ZEA
the consideration to which an entity expects to be B - IRIEB B EREERSE
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or 159 - Wik RMEEE
services to a customer. MR PEREMIRE M

BRESHKESEER -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWNEBPBEREEDN([HE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BiEmEAER |) (&)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) HRPF:] KIETEBHBER
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) HEA —R=ZFB-NF-A—
BEM(E)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with B. BEEBUKEHKEERFEISH

Customers (“HKFRS 15") (Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method without practical
expedients. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15 as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at the date of initial application (that is, 1
January 2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2017 has not been restated.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a
significant impact on when the Group recognises
revenue.

— BEF &N WK ([ & EBE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMEBUBHRERER(FR
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BiEsmEAER |) (&)
(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMEMKRERZFHT &
issued but are not yet effective BRI E R EREER
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to RNEEWEIZATERAN T3 2 EMHE
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been BARER ZF G RIET BB
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early SR BEEBAERAEEARE
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is Bz &Rz IEHE - AEBEF
to apply these changes on the date they become AN ZEEENAHERZSE
effective. 28 o
HKFRS 16 Leases' BRI REEN HE'
165
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' 5 (BRGBRERE MEHEE R
z88)-%EE23
b
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative BRMBHRELNE) ABBBEZRAER
Compensation’ LA Hl
Annual Improvementsto  Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business “E-RFE-E+  BAMERSENES
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Combinations' EERERUBEE  BEBaAfZET
BRI FEHE
Annual Improvementsto  Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint “E-TEECE—+ EANEHEENEN
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Arrangements' FRMERNBHRE  RAERHZET
BRI EEYE
Annual Improvementsto  Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes' “E-RFE-E—+ BASHERE 2%
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle FRRBAYBEE  BR2B
BRI FEHE
Annual Improvementsto  Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs' ZE-RFECE+ AAGIEREBRA
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle FEBEANBHRE  BRAZET
BRI R
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an ERUBREENE) REFEEMENT
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture? BRARGHENE  SELRRAZANEE
BHET LERFA?
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. L R-ZE-—hNhF—A B 2E&HAEKZ
2 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for FEHIM AR -
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date 2 ZEEIIERR _E—+F—HA—H
has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the sz BEB RS - A B EIIR
amendments continues to be permitted. BIELE,BUH o 51 /o3RI A E A A%
E2CHIK
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2. RPNEBPEBREEN(ER
B REZ2ER ) &)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEBEHMRERZHT &

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have significant
impact on the Group’s result of operations and financial
positions.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of

BT ERMBREER (&)

AEBERIEFEZFERTEERE
REEEMEELNTE  Bi2S
RARMZFET T AR EHANE

BHEERE N BN EREKX
TE -

BEBUBHEERIE 165 — H
g

AV BREEAF 16 BERNE
BB EE S ERF 175
Sl kMmMAzE  sSIAE—&HAA
BtRERK  YREABARR

more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of BBANREAZHEHERREE
low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is NafE BRIEVBEEREEBESR
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its EQERw - BEMmME  BRERE
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease B A5 SR #2855 16 5% » AT AZBHE

liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is

RAEAABEAEEE 2N SHE
ifé&(ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%)&ﬁ%b\
XNHEERBEZETAEERE -
At AEABEIBEREEE
FEMHERENE  YHEHER
BZREERDERAE I KA
B#n  TRREREXANES -
o BEREEENEERED
TREEEREFE - FERETH
BEHMEENR . TERAHEASE

BERITREBRBTERERT
TEEEERIIAEZERT - #
RIEZRRAEL Z MR- e

significantly different from the lessee accounting for SHERIB T EEARAGHEBREN
leases that are classified as operating leases under the B %#EFEBANREENELNSES

predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMNEBUMBREERN([FB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BIFESREXER |) (&)
(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMEERERZHT K

88

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to
reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income
taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall
also assume the tax authority will examine amounts that
it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then
the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected
using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected
value” approach, whichever better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RANEBAMBEHRELERN (S
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B SRE 2R |) (&)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEBEHMRERZHT &

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met —
instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint
operator of a business obtains control over a joint
operation, this is a business combination achieved in
stages and the previously held equity interest should
therefore be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify that when a party
that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a
joint operation which is a business and subsequently
obtains joint control of the joint operation, the previously
held equity interest should not be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMNEBUMBREERN([FB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B SRE 2R |) (2)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMEERERZHT K

90

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax
consequences of dividends are recognised consistently
with the transactions that generated the distributable
profits, either in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKAS 23 which clarifies that a borrowing
made specifically to obtain a qualifying asset which
remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is
ready for its intended use or sale would become part of
the funds an entity borrows generally and therefore
included in the general pool.

BT ERMBREER (&)

—E-RFE-F-—LtFHAY
BEBUBHREEAZ FERE
— BEBETERIE 12K EH
ZIEET

REEIEBIZTRONZZFER
$ IR B I AR RE R 2 TR R
MRz B8 - ZEZBHBIE
ERGRTERE 125 28] - £E
EHJ&QZF)’TEP)’T SHEREELR
DKM Z X SRR — BT AR
B HteEREERERNERE
MR °

—E—hAFR_E—tFRH
BERUBHREE ZEERE
— EBEERFE23REEAK
KZIEET

REEDEBIETBONOZFER
5 IR B 0 AR RE RO 2 TR E R H 4
ART 2N 2EE - ZER2HERE
BEBGTERE 23R 2185 - HE
PARBGEEREEMEFELZ
e RNEREEREEATRARE
BERSRETHERIDAESR
AZEERRAZER—RMEE
T —BOALR A —REEM
A o

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIERERAF » Annual Report &3 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B 35 SR R Y EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RHBEBUBBREERN(ES
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B SRE 2R |) (&)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEBEHMRERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the joint venture or associate.

BT ERMBREER (&)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 3. MREHEHE

(a) Statement of compliance (a) EREBH

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs"”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern to preparation of financial
statement. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

(i)

(ii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Going concern basis

The directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, the appropriateness of which largely
depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed below.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has account
receivables in the amount of HK$439,596,000
(2017: Nil), the balance mainly represents the
amount due from China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC") related to sales of natural
gas on and prior to 2018. The directors confirm
that the CNPC has verbally agreed the proceeds
could be paid in 2019 after the second
supplemental agreement has been properly
executed. However, the Company has not obtained
any written confirmation that CNPC will pay the
proceeds before 31 December 2019 or the
supplemental agreement has been signed at the
date of this report.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3. MEEEE)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern (b) FTEEERFESERRKR(E)
assumption (Continued)

(i) Going concern basis (Continued)

(i) FEEEEEE)

The Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December
2018 are mainly attributable to exploration and
evaluation cost payables amounting to
HK$353,956,000 (2017: HK$421,119,000). The
directors of the Company confirm that these
contractors are aware of the fact that the Group
has yet to receive the proceeds from sales of
natural gas related to prior years from CNPC, and
that the Group will be able to successfully persuade
these contractors not to insist on repayment of the
construction costs until CNPC has settled the
proceeds. However, there is no certainty that these
contractors will not demand repayment before the
Group receives the proceeds from CNPC.

The directors have carried out a detailed review of
the cash flow forecast of the Group covering a
period of not less than twelve months from the end
of the reporting period based on certain underlying
assumptions including (i) CNPC will pay the
proceeds before 31 December 2019; and (ii) the
Group will be able to successfully persuade
contractors not to insist on repayment of the
construction cost payables before the Group
receives the proceeds from CNPC. During the year,
the Group obtained a new RMB100 million banking
facilities. Taking into account the above measures,
the directors of the Company consider the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the twelve months from 31 December 2018.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3. WEEEE)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(b) FIEEERBELLERBRRE)

(i) FREEEEE)

(i) Going concern basis (Continued)

There is an uncertainty related to the outcomes of
the above events or conditions that may cast doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and, therefore, the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. Should the use of the
going concern basis in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements be determined to
be not appropriate, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying amounts of the
Group’s assets to their net realisable value, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,

BRA L E AR B R
RAWEEM - Al AR @ HF
BISENBRE B
gt AEE AR EANIER X
BB P EREEE MBER
&7 - WERIFELEELER

U AR ISR RE RAL A
taE - AIAETRE 4%
BEEZREEMREE A2
BFE - WHL A REEL Z A
BINRRMEH A - AR 3R
mBEENMERBREDHIE
HOBERRBEERRB A
{8 o ZEFRBZFELRIVER

respectively. The effects of these adjustments have BT RER P R o
not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
(c) Functional and presentation currency () MEERZIEHX
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HEFREMEHRRAB (BT

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the 273 BILNARRRNINEEE -

functional currency of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
("the Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

4. EREFEE

(a)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(a) Business combination and basis of (a) EBEHREZEEEE(E)

96

consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required
if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(b) Subsidiaries (b) KEAE

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee without holding the majority of the voting
rights. In determining whether de-facto control exists the
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances,
including:

o The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

o Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting rights;

. Other contractual arrangements; and
o Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEREFTBER®)
(Continued)
(c) Joint arrangements (9] aTH
The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there AEBABBMALTHN—F  6H%
is a contractual arrangement that confers joint control B P AEBRBEE D — 7 HAth B
over the relevant activities of the arrangement to the AP REES T - B AR EIR
group and at least one other party. Joint control is B HIF B A R R AT
assessed under the same principles as control over o
subsidiaries.
The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as REBE THIMIBED 8 S T8 -
either:
. Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only o BENF  WAKEEESESR
the net assets of the joint arrangement; or BHMAZHNEESFE &
. Joint operations: where the group has both the o HREKE  WMEGHATHN
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of BERINLABEER -

the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint ML A TEEE R D AR - AR

arrangements, the Group considers: BERE :

. The structure of the joint arrangement; o A ZTHER &

e The legal form of joint arrangements structured o HMAETHNERERFEA S —EE
through a separate vehicle; EES A

. The contractual terms of the joint arrangement o A THmZRZ AR &
agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including any o EMEMEE RER(BIET
other contractual arrangements). A E L HE)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.
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4, EREFBE®E)

(c)

(d)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(d) Goodwill (Continued) d) mE@#E)

100

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount (see Note 4(p)), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in
use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) V% BERRE

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements 3-6 years or over the term of
the lease; if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 4-8 years
Motor vehicles 6-8 years
Natural gas pipeline 10 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the assets
estimated recoverable amounts.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(9)

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment property is measured
at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair
value with any change therein recognised in profit or
loss.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group chooses
not to classify and account for these property interests as
investment property.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly
associated with an exploratory wells (drilling cost and
others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas
reserves have been discovered. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs
are charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration stage
are written off as expense as incurred.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
relevant previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassification.
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4, EREFBE®E)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

(g) Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets is reviewed when facts and circumstances suggest
that the carrying amount of an exploration and
evaluation assets may exceed its recoverable amount.
When one or more of the following events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, the Group shall perform an impairment
test in accordance with HKAS 36.

o the period for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed.

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for
and evaluation of natural resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.

o exploration for and evaluation of natural resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of natural resources
and the Group has decided to discontinue such
activities in the specific area.

o sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in
full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

(9)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Leasing

0]

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the
lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The interests in petroleum
production sharing contracts were amortised on
unit of production method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EAETHE#®)

(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (i) BERFEE(TEEBE) (&)
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment (i) EE

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment of
assets (other than financial assets) below). If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent
of its revaluation surplus.

BEEPRBREER L IR
B - e ABRAEREH
MEREEETTRERR - m
AERAERFHNETLEE
MARAMERNETEENEE
FEITRENR  THEDF

8 - | EESBLBEKE
1B 52 A] W () & REAETTORERI
(ATXEBREE(TEREE
BEE)REZETER) © fi
BE WL EEFEER
HERHE @ RIZEEZREE
RREEHEAIMEIEEE -

MEEEZRRERAMRS -
BRIFEREEAEEE SRR
B WRREBRRES—IA
EHIEMEHE -

105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘l'.R (=¥ Uﬁ#ﬁﬁpﬁ. FII

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-F=+—H

4,

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments

(A) Accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018

(i)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EAETHE#®)

(Continued)
(j) Financial Instruments (Continued) () &WMIE#E)
(A) Accounting policies applied from (A) E-E—NF—HF—HFE
1 January 2018 (Continued) BZEF & (&)

(i)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised
in profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"):
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or
loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

() THEEE)
BERITAE)

BEAAE: BEEAD
Rengmss  BH
ReEREMARR/IMNAR
ERMEZEEREH
FRANET & o 8 H AR A
AEZERMEEHRRE
RERMNEETE - 7
B B X ek K &
BIARORER 182
W o K IETER ETFEZ
EU IR T R

BATFEEABZ
(B2 FEES AR
#w) BAFEBEASA
BRZeMmEERER
EEBEZEMEE - B
VHHEREIEERAF
BEABIZZERME
B o BRI A FE
BEFEZEREE-
i AR H L & s iE R
Mk mEE  BIZ
SoeMmEELBAFE
BEE - TETE(BES
MNBmARTETR) D
HMERBIEEE  BRIFZ
EPTET BEWIETEIER
BEHTAE - BERE
WIEA S A& K F
BZemEE " TwmH
¥ER A HIEA
TEEFABESER
FE e BT W AT
B T B nld g5 K
SR AT EBEFT A
2ERESE BRY]
SHERE - (WEEHEKR
SERE R D AL -
BfER T AMIET AL
N EEAES -

BERBIEIERAEMR AT 3 Annual Report F§ 2018 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘l'.R (=¥ Uﬁ#ﬁﬁpﬂni

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-F=+—H

4.

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018 (Continued)

(i)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment'’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or
loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

4, EREFBE®E)

() &WMIAESE)

A BE=F—-NF—HF—HE

B2 EsilE (&
() =HEEGE)
AR T B

RO HERBLFERFIER
BZRAKRER - A%
E R AR E R ER
Hizmias s 258
BRFEECKEE
B o ZEETRZER
B - BAFEER
AEM 2 E K E 2 A
BREDRAFEE
B REKRAREZRRA
R FRIEB AR
R R B 3B 0 4R B K
AR o Hpp U as &Eﬁ@@
RN H AL 2w W s
BETreEm ‘*ﬁETE
me FTEEMBRATA
%§Q¥FTE§+)\T%E“
BoMAFEEREZ
Hﬁ,%\&ﬁ],%ﬂﬁzkﬂﬂﬁ(\?a

BERBAEIERAR QT » Annual Report F#f 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Fincmciql Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018 (Continued)

(ir)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL
on trade receivables, and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018 (Continued)

(ir)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However,
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than
90 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018 (Continued)

(ir)

(iii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EAETHE®)

(Continued)
(j) Financial Instruments (Continued) () =MIA#E)
(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 (A) E-E—NFEF—HF—HFE
January 2018 (Continued) HAZEFBE &)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) =MEEE)

112

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including

BAFEEFABRRZ
TRAEE)

i) 4 10 30 HA 1 5 T W B
TRBE AT
BESBRRFKEESR-

separated embedded derivatives, are also PTETAE(BIEBII@mA
classified as held for trading unless they are AOTETR) MDA

designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss if the following criteria are met:
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are
part of a group of financial liabilities which
are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains
an embedded derivative that would need to
be separately recorded.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued) () &@MIEA#AE)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 (A) E-FE—NFEF—F—HFE
January 2018 (Continued) HZEFBE (&)

(i) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) ETHEEE)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, except for the
gains and losses arising from the Group’s
own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables and accruals, borrowings,
amount due to a shareholder, amounts due
to non-controlling interests and the debt
element of convertible notes issued by the
Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the amortisation process.
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114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018 (Continued)

(iv)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into their respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between
the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert
the loan notes into equity, is included in
equity (convertible notes reserve).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2018 (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018

Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible notes is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, represented
by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes
reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible notes reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry
dates, the balance stated in convertible notes
reserve will be released to the retained
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company

are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFEER®E)
(Continued)
(j) Financial Instruments (Continued) () &=WMIA#E
(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 (A) E=-FE—NFE—F—HFE
January 2018 (Continued) B2ZE&8THE (&
(vii) Derecognition (vii) AR IFTERR
The Group derecognises a financial asset EEHEMEEZARK
when the contractual rights to the future BeREZ2BHERNRE
cash flows in relation to the financial asset WE - NECEESM
expire or when the financial asset has been EEMBBEEERTEE
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria B ISR S ERF o5
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. P TERRAER  RE
EE&ILERZIES R
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the BEHEEANPRTEZE
obligation specified in the relevant contract is % A% B - HROH 3¢ 3 HA
discharged, cancelled or expires. B e tERZE
ERAE -
Where the Group issues its own equity MAEERETNERE
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial BEIEZmAERE AT
liability in whole or in part as a result of K ZIRATAUER
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the 2EEF D EREE "
equity instruments issued are the PRz RARTARR
consideration paid and are recognised initially KENRE LHYTR
and measured at their fair value on the date BEcmBaEEESI
the financial liability or part thereof is DFEHEE B 2 AFEE
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity MRAMTE - WEETT
instruments issued cannot be reliably AT AZ A BEE
measured, the equity instruments are AR EEE - BIRAT
measured to reflect the fair value of the AmRkMEdiEema
financial liability extinguished. The difference Bz AVFEEFE B
between the carrying amount of the financial THEeRmadE(EEP
liability or part thereof extinguished and the )2 REEEENRE
consideration paid is recognised in profit or ZEBIRNFNBRS
loss for the year. TR
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
Accordingly, the comparative financial information
provided continues to be accounted for in
accordance with the Group’s previous accounting

policy.

()

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and all other
financial assets are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of
a financial asset under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation
or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They
arise principally through the provision of
goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Fincmcial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available-for-
sale or are not included in other categories of
financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments,
which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(if)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor’s financial difficulty;
and

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.

For Available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount
of the loss is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBE@®
(Continued)
(j) Financial Instruments (Continued) () &®mIE®)
(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 B) BEE-F—tF+=H
December 2017 (Continued) =t+—HIEERZEHEK
E(E)
(iii)  Financial liabilities (i) THEE
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, AEBRFELEREZ
depending on the purpose for which the BENREERMABED
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at B BAFEERER
fair value through profit or loss are initially SRz e MABENTR
measured at fair value and financial liabilities RFEEE  MRE
at amortised costs are initially measured at WA EZ BB E
fair value, net of directly attributable costs NEEAFEEFEL
incurred. BIRESENEERE
GRS -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BHBERASRZ 2/
BE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost including RBHAART R 2 & @
other payables and accruals, borrowings, BEEEEMENREA
amount due to a shareholder, amounts due K FERTFRIE - AR &
to non-controlling interests and the debt N —RBRHIAE - B
element of convertible notes issued by the IR IR R AR
Group are subsequently measured at lﬁfﬁm—ﬁﬁ%%%#ﬂ
amortised cost, using the effective interest BEH D - RRAER
method. The related interest expense is A FROK 12 B 85 BN &
recognised in profit or loss. H - HENBRXNE
P HER o
Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss EEHARKILER
when the liabilities are derecognised as well 75 38 8 55 A2 7 3 SR R
as through the amortisation process. B Eam sk EENIE

&2 27
mP R o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(iv)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into their respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between
the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert
the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible notes reserve).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEREFTBER®)
(Continued)
(j) Financial Instruments (Continued) () =«WMIAE)
(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 B EZ-_ZFE—+tF+=H4
December 2017 (Continued) =Et+-—HIEERZEHK
EE)
(iv)  Convertible notes (Continued) (iv) FEIERRERE (&)

In subsequent periods, the liability component REZBB  AJBRE
of the convertible notes is carried at BRBESD TIUAER
amortised cost using the effective interest F R B SH P AT
method. The equity component, represented B o MAREED (RERATH#
by the option to convert the liability 8 iiB D BEIR N A T
component into ordinary shares of the LB R RIER) BIRE
Company, will remain in convertible notes KA R EEHEE &
reserve until the embedded option is ERANEIREREITE
exercised (in which case the balance stated in BlE(RIEIBERT » /Al
convertible notes equity reserve will be BREEEZFENES
transferred to share capital and share % B2 2 A% AN K IR
premium). Where the option remains &) - (Wi mEREIH B
unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance WAREITE AR
stated in convertible notes reserve will be BHENERERBRE
released to the retained earnings. No gain or REEF) - a2
loss is recognised upon conversion or B B R T e RN ER

expiration of the option. PRERTAALE -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or service
may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if
the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

. does not create an asset with an alternative use to

the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i)  Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a
point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer, which is typically at
the time of delivery to customer. Revenue is only
recognised when there are sufficient information to
estimate the selling price and to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-apportioned
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(iii)

Revenue from sales of natural gas from the Group’s
share of income (including cost recovery gas,
investment recovery gas and etc.) according to the
terms stipulated in the Petroleum Contract is
recognised at a point in time when control of the
natural gas is transferred to the customer, being
when the natural gas is delivered to the customer and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the natural gas. Revenue is
only recognised when there are sufficient information
to estimate the selling price of the natural gas and to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.

Distribution income from pipeline is recognised at a
point in time when the natural gas is used by the
customers.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

(i)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the
time of delivery and title is passed to customer.

Interest income is recognised on a time-apportioned
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

(i) Revenue from sales of natural gas is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which is
at the time of delivery and title is passed to
customer, and when the amount of revenue can be
estimated reliably.

(iv) Distribution income from pipeline represents
income recognised based on usage of the pipeline

for distribution of natural gas
Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(m) Income taxes (Continued) (m) PR (&)

130

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on
these investment properties are measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(n) Foreign currencies (n) Shis

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(n) Foreign currencies (Continued) (n) &)

132

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at
the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group'’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
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exchange differences recognised in the translation reserve MREWEELESHZREEBZ
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are ZETEN Z5 E%ﬁ/\ﬁ%ﬁﬁ_&{’ﬁ
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on REEER 5

disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
translation reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(o) Employee benefits (o) EEREA

(i) Short term empolyee benefits () HEHESEF
Short term employee benefits are employee 72 HA & B 42 AP BE R AR A LA S
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are MESRET - BENEERM
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months HEARGHFERERERREER
after the end of the annual reporting period in BT_EARNGSE - EEES
which the employees render the related service. BN A F g B IR AR AR 75
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the BRI o
year when the employees render the related
service.

(i) Employment Ordinance long service (i) EREFEGIRERES
payments
Certain employees of the Group have completed RIRE B & 3 0] ([ 5% 5
the required number of years of service under the Bll) AEEETFEEDES
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the FTAREM S BERRRILERER
“Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long RERRPREECZFE - K
service payments upon termination of their SEEAABELEFEEBHG
employment. The Group is only liable to make such BIERZI AR IR E B R 2 £ 1L
payments where the termination meets the BRI -
required circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

(iii) Defined contribution retirement plan (iii) EFEHEF BB
Contributions to defined contribution retirement TERRHSRIR NG & 2 R
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss EERBIRBREERERAR
when the services are rendered by the employees. Fix e

(iv) Termination benefits (iv) BEEF

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, EREFBE®E)

(p) Impairment of assets (other than financial (p) BEE(TEESHEE)RE

134

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of investment in subsidiaries to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating
unit (see Note 4(d)), discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(r)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probably will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is @ member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company'’s parent.

B B35 R R Y 5E

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

n‘l'.F

4, EREFBE®E)

(q) BERIAREE

(r)
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4.

136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

4, EREFBE®E)
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(b)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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138

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, other key sources of
estimates uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are as follows.

0]

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. Bt HE R4S THEBAE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEZFEXRFR#®)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(ii) Estimation of oil and gas resources and/or (i) HRERE SHHEMA

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group's oil and gas reserves
and resources are inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the
engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated
oil and gas reserves can be designated as “proved”.
Proved reserves estimates will be updated at least
annually and take into account recent production and
technical information about each field. In addition, as
prices and cost levels change from year to year, the
estimate of proved reserves also changes. The change will
be considered as a change in estimation for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in related
depreciation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
amortisation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Amortisation rates are determined
based on estimated proved reserve quantities (the
denominator) and capitalised costs of producing
properties (the numerator). Producing properties’
capitalised costs are amortised based on the unit-of-
production method.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UN

(iii)

(iv)

CERTAINTY (Continued)
Recognition of deferred income tax assets

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 4(m)
to the consolidated financial statements, deferred income
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilised, and it is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised. In determining the deferred income
tax assets to be recognised, management is required to
estimate the future applicable tax rate for each subsidiary
of the Company at each tax jurisdiction and the
profitability of each subsidiary, so as to estimate the
future utilisation of tax losses. Any difference between
these estimates and the actual outcome will impact the
Group's result in the period in which the actual outcome
is determined.

Revenue

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract disclosed in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements, China Era
Energy Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China
Era”) is entitled to gas generated from the Akemomu
Gas Field during the exploration period in accordance to
the entitlement method stated on the Petroleum
Contract. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
244,942,000 (2017: 186,040,000) cubic meters of gas
was produced by the jointly controlled operation.
According to the Petroleum Contract, all gas produced
from the Akemomu Gas Field should be sold to CNPC,
unless otherwise agreed and a Gas Sales Agreements
("GSA") should be entered into by CNPC and China Era
to specify the unit price charged by CNPC to the jointly
controlled operation. As at 31 December 2018, the GSA
has not yet been signed between the Group and CNPC.
Based on the current information available to the directors,
the directors expected that the GSA could be finalised in the
year of 2019.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTSAND 5. RSt HUE R T8
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EZ2EFERR )
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(iv) Revenue (Continued) (iv) Wz (&)
Despite that the GSA has yet been signed up to 31 BEHEE_E—N\F+-_A=+—
December 2018 and the date of this report. During the EI &Zli#b“zi =] HH EE- N
year ended 31 December 2018, significant progress has CREBEEZZE-NF+ A
been made on the negotiation of GSA during the year, _—f— H JJ:EV ERMmER
the Group have conducted several rounds of negotiation EREANRSERNER  AEEHHE

with CNPC mainly focused on the detail of the GSA
including the pricing mechanism of the gas being sold by
CNPC. After taking into account of the PRC legal opinion,
although the GSA has not been signed up to the date of
the report, with the selling price information and other
documents exchanged and items agreed during the joint
committee meeting between the representative of CNPC
and the Group, the Group considered that they had
agreed with CNPC the terms of the sales of natural gas
delivered during and before year 2018. Both parties
agreed to formalise these agreed terms of sales of natural
gas by entering into agreements. Although the properly
executed agreements are yet signed as of the date of this
report, based on the current progress, the directors
considered that the conditions for revenue recognition
were met during the year, and therefore recognised the
revenue generated from the production sharing contract
in the current year. The revenue recognised during the
year represents gas produced by the jointly controlled
operations and shared by the Group between 1 June
2009 till 31 December 2018.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(v) Impairment on exploration and evaluation
assets and intangible assets

The Group tests the exploration and evaluation assets
and intangible assets for impairment according to
accounting policies stated in Notes 4(g) and 4(i) to the
consolidated financial statements. The assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions and estimates. While
conducting an impairment review of the assets, the
Group makes certain judgement in making assumptions
including the volume of gas to be extracted during the
forecast period, the timing in commencing the
development stage and commercial production, future
gas prices and production costs, changes in these
estimates may result in significant variance to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In
estimating the value in use of exploration and evaluation
assets and intangible assets, the Group has made
reference to the natural gas price based on the selling
price information and other documents exchanged and
items agreed during the joint committee meeting
between the representative of CNPC and the Group. As
at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
exploration and evaluation assets and intangible assets
was approximately HK$474,224,000 and
HK$1,250,254,000 respectively (2017: approximately
HK$369,087,000 and HK$1,523,512,000 respectively).
Impairment losses on exploration and evaluation assets
and intangible assets of approximately HK$36,000,000
and HK$95,000,000 (2017: approximately
HK$39,000,000 and HK$162,000,000 respectively) were
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018
respectively.
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RIBEFEREEFELZET  EF S
DERRIRMGE - EREEETT
BB R - AN E AR TERHA
FEHRAARFEE AEFAEEE
NREERERKE BERXARER
MEERASELBREMELET
ﬂ% % AT EREL - 3%

BYGEEENERERERE
E PEFTEVIR M EE R ER
BEZFEREER AEELRXZR
B BA h & B B AN A B R 0B
ALEeER LRBRIEBERK
EMXHARFIBEZIEREEZ
FAREBE - HR-_ZT—N\E+_HA
=+—H DERFHEEUARE
FEEZEEREBE N AAD
474,224,000 7T K& 1,250,254,000
BLT(ZZE—+F: 5348
369,087,000/ JT & 1,523,512,000
BIL) c BEREEEARERE
EEREE 18 5 51149 36,000,000 78 7T
195,000,000 L ( =T — + F -
2 Bl #739,000,000% T K&
162,000,000 L) E R B E T
—N\F+-A=Z+—HIFERE

=7
s ©
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. [
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION =
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

BETHE R THEBR
ZEERIR @)

(vi) Impairment of goodwiill (vi) BERE

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

(vii) Going concern

The directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that
the Group will be able to operate as a going concern in
the foreseeable future, which is a critical judgement that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
directors consider that, after taking into account of all
major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption as
set out in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern.

AEBELBFETHEEER
B ERRFALEIEFEZRS
EEEN 2 EREE- AT ERE
B AKEAGHARSELEM
ZTERARAGRE  TARER
BMZFRE - LA EZFRERE
ZBE -

(vii) FELE

ARRBEFERUFEAVHERRED
RER AR B FE 7] 58 SR AS RE R AR S
& HR—RERAE - HiRA R
BHRRAEBORBZERK ©
BREBRZAGIRESTHA S
A THEMENRREFERIAMNR
TR FIE - £ Z BRI gL E L R R
% 10 18 51| 2 R 1 2 & B A5 SRR B
E 3()i) 8 I B R B RBRERE
RERZAETREHERMMNIE -
E=ZRRAKEERIFELE -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(viii) Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers have
based on a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation are reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
income statement.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance. In accordance with the
Group's internal organisation and reporting structure, the
operating segments are based on nature of business.

The Group has the following three reportable segments:

The Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural Gas
segment is engaged in the exploration, development,
production and sales of natural gas and the usage of pipeline
for distribution of natural gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is engaged
in the sales of food and beverages.

The Money Lending Business segment is engaged in provision
of loans to third parties.

HAESTHE K& THEBER
EZ2EFERFR@®
(vii) REMEZATEE

KREMEDEN B EXLEME
TZEERAFEBIKR - BEEQ
FEER  HEMKEZGETE
BRETHMSRR 25 - AR
AEENKBEERESRDITERE
HIET - WEMEEMRAZBRATR
BRIREF TGN - RERRZE
HEHAKBERENEZ A FEE
HREE  WAHKRAKRERME
Hz BT BFLAERE -

Wz K 7 BB E #

AEERETIELERRECHEND
NEBHE - EEELE D - AR #B
FLERAFFEE KRR - REBEAEENRED
ABRBERE  KEDBREREE

g7 e

REBEE TH=ERI2H D :

RARYIR - EERDHED B - HERA
REE - R LEMHEREREED

HERMMABEBIE  KEHERM
R BRI 2 2675 o

MEXBD R - EREERTE=T -
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n‘l'.F

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERkDEER (2

(Continued)

The segment information provided to the Board for the B2 Z2—N\EFEh-_ZFT—+F+=-H
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2018 =t—HIEFE RAU2RSIBANEEFS
and 2017 are as follows: RENDFERAT :

(a) Information about reportable segment () ERATE®myBUE - BRH

revenue, profit or loss and other EBENEEREMER
information
Exploration,
Productionand  Sales of Food
Distribution of and Beverages Money Lending
Natural Gas Business Business Total
XRRHE - HERR
EERDH RERER HEER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FET FET FEn

For the year ended HE-Z-N\F

31 December 2018 TZRA=+-HLFE
Disaggregated by timing of revenue R RS A D

recognition
Point in time X 477,784 - - 477,784
Over time BERS - - 5 5
Revenue from external customers PR 471,784 = 5 471,789
Reportable segment profit/(loss) BRAEHAIT2RA 3

before income tax wH/ (B8 163,523 (1,990) (241) 161,292
Segment results included: DEEEEIE
Interest income FlEMA 23 - - 23
Interest expense FERY (1,496) - - (1,496)
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BERRETE

equipment (3,532) (245) - (3.777)
Impairment and amortisation of BREEREREH

intangible assets (212,727) - - (212,727)
Impairment of exploration and BRI EERE

evaluation assets (36,000) - - (36,000)
Impairment of goodwil BERE (1,151) - - (1,151)
Income tax expense FBHAY (111,041) - - (111,041)
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHIEEE (11,649) - - (11,649)
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE 162,452 - - 162,452
Reportable segment assets 2R HERE 2,198,733 11,370 20 2,210,123
Reportable segment liabilities AERNHER (662,637) (90) - (662,727)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDIBER (&)

(Continued)
(a) Information about reportable segment () FRAUTE2HoBUWE - HmAR
revenue, profit or loss and other EBENERREMER (&)

information (Continued)

Exploration,
Production and  Sales of Food
Distribution of  and Beverages  Money Lending

Natural Gas Business Business Total
KAREE - fﬁEE{uu
HERSH REEER MEEH et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FAET FBL
For the year ended BE-Z—+tF
31 December 2017 +ZRA=+-HLEEE
Disaggregated by timing of revenue #ZUKZSHER R4
recognition
Point in time X 12,630 = = 12,630
Over time & L) - - 409 409
Revenue from external customers  SMNEBE B Uizs 12,630 = 409 13,039
Reportable segment (lossyprofit B FTERATA 2R D3
before income tax (B8),/ &N (216,136) (1,939) 207 (217,868)
Segment results included: NEEBERLSE -
Interest income FMEWA 5 16 - 21
Interest expense MeEmL (552) = = (552)
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - BiE R RENE
equipment (2,485) (245) - (2,730)
Impairment of intangible assets A ERE N (162,000) = = (162,000)
Impairment of exploration and HERFEEERNE
evaluation assets (39,000) - - (39,000)
Impairment of goodwill HERE (6,000) - - (6,000)
Income tax credits FriEHEL 6,774 - = 6,774
Deferred tax assets EREHEEE 99,673 = = 99,673
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE 630 - = 630
Reportable segment assets AERHEEE 2,041,921 31,924 20 2,073,865
Reportable segment liabilities A2/APEE (506,373) (46) = (506,419)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

Wiz KD EBER &)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) TEHsWBRARNEIE  BEE

profit or loss, assets and liabilities

REaEzHk

2018 2017
—g-N\E —EtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit/(Loss) before income tax MRETEBANER, (EE)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) before 8] 2 3Rk % Z8BR FT15 4 Al i
income tax il (&518) 161,292 (217,868)
Other income E A 19,765 236
Fair value (loss)/gain of financial assets AT EBEFFABZZE@ME
at fair value through profit or loss EZAFEE(ER) M (13,064) 15,678
Fair value loss of investment properties & W% N FEEFE (10,849) =
Finance costs BhE A (6,978) (6,450)
Unallocated head office and corporate RO EC4APEE R N A AIFI S
expenses (11,937) (33,223)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSRLATRE T (EE) 138,229 (241,627)
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets EWMOHEE 2,210,123 2,073,865
Property, plant and equipment %% = & 474 =
Investment properties LB 57,600 =
Other receivables, deposits and EAEUER - e RIEARK
prepayments 15 28,866 64,553
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEBEFABRZ
profit or loss TRLEE 61,476 74,540
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITH 53,034 136,521
Total assets BEE 2,411,573 2,349,479
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDIBER (&)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) TEHRSTHFEFNLEE - EE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities REBEZHER(E)
(Continued)
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AEHOEEE 662,727 506,419
Convertible notes EH?%HXmﬁf 71,467 64,489
Amount due to a shareholder FER—R IR RIE 39,363 40,402
Other payables and accruals HAb R IE R ERT & 3,357 36,929
Total liabilities weE 776,914 648,239
(c) Geographic information () HEEHR
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TREHAEEEBERGINBRES
revenue from external customers and non-current assets ZWHENEIETHEE(BEERIBE
other than deferred tax assets (“Specified non-current EBRIN ([BEXRRBEE] D
assets”). #r e
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIINBEF Z W= EEFRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E T+t ZEB-NF ZZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FAET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &/ (sEHi2h) 5 409 58,959 2,063
PRC F 477,784 12,630 1,749,722 1,922,865
477,789 13,039 1,808,681 1,924,928
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OTHER INCOME

Bank interest income

Exchange gain, net

Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Reversal of expected credit losses

Gain on disposal of subsidiary

Others

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings (Note 27)
Interest on convertible notes (Note 28)
Interest on other payables (Note 25)

AR e B 35 SR R Y EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

7. HfgA

2018 2017
—E-NE T —+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
SRITH B YA 43 25
P& H U5 F 58 256 49

REBAFEEFABEZ SR
BEEZRBBA 228 325
FEHEEEERE 6,268 -
HEH B A R /W 12,697 -
Eh 641 -
20,133 399

8. mEMAK

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
RITEEF B (FH:E27) 919 =
AT EEF B (M52 28) 6,978 6,450
E A A FRIBF S (B 5E 25) 577 552
8,474 7,002
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9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRETEBANEFR(FHE)
2018 2017
A —T—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at TS T AT A (E18)
after charging/(crediting): B (GtA) -
Auditor's remuneration = ERRT BN & 925 1,070
Staff costs (including directors’ BTIRA(BREESHE)
remuneration)
— Wages and salaries and other benefits ~ — Iﬁ&%ﬁ%&ﬁ@?ﬁﬂ 14,895 11,238
— Pension fund contributions IRIRET IR 69 61
14,964 11,299
Reversal of expected credit losses RHEEEEREE (6,268) =
10. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 10. FRE8 (BiX) K&
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of SETHEWRERANBIERRE
comprehensive income represents:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax BNHARH IR
— Tax for the year — RFEHIEA (152) (6)
Deferred tax IEETIA
— Origination and reversal of temporary ~ — EafF =8 7 E4 KT
difference (Note 21(a)) (MF7E21(a)) (110,889) 6,780
Total income tax (expense)/credit Fri5i (M), B G 8xE (111,041) 6,774
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the HRAEBARFEWEERTGEH (=
Group did not have assessable profit for the year (2017: Nil). —+F E) MUEREBSFEHIEL
PRC enterprise income tax is calculated at 25% on the B o MBS %RE?ZK¢F21EE+
estimated assessable profit for the year (2017: Nil). ERBMH 2 25% st BE(ZFE—+F !

&) -
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10. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (Continued)

11.

Notes to the Consolidated Fincmcial Statements

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled
to the profit/(loss) before income tax in the consolidated

A M IS SRR M EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

statement of comprehensive income as follows: HERIT -

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Effect of tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdiction

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Temporary difference not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Income tax expense/(credit) for the year

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company did not recommend

10. FREH (BAR) "% (@)

KEERE/RAES(Ke) 8254
HWERARNZ KRG ?FRHIJ/ﬁﬁfl/(

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
BRATEBALER, (E8R) 138,229 (241,627)
REBMERRE165% (=ZF
—t¢1smmzm%%; 22,808 (39,868)
READ B R L S 2 B A
MEIRzFE 35,791 (2,834)
IERBIUMA B 2
(3,568) (6)
TR AZ 2 MBHE
51,090 35,778
RIERZ B E5E 4,549 -
FATIBEERE 119 =
RIER 2 RBABIEEB 2B
7 252 156
FAMBRAL(ER) 111,041 (6,774)
11. RE

any payment of dividend during the year (2017: Nil). B(ZE—+5F &)
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. BREF (EE)
(a) Basic (a) EXR
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the FREKRZEF,(EE) JHBEAR R
profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by A AFEMESERN(EBE)BRIAER
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BT ERINE O EETE -

during the year.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to AT AT REERF(E8)
— Owners of the Company — RAREHEEA 27,544 (235,510)
Number Number
of shares of shares
RBEE Kin& A
Weighted average number of ordinary 2 317 8 A% it F 15 £x
shares in issue 9,505,344,000 9,505,344,000
HK Cents HK Cents
Al b/l
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARR(FE) 0.29 (2.48)
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company during the

year is based on the following data:

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Adjustments for interest on convertible notes

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the purpose of diluted earnings per
share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
convertible notes

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for dilutive earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share
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(b) #F

ZA/NETE? XS WA il
SRR R 2 M B AR L R

R ESEEERN 2 AREHA A
A A

B &7 E B INE T8

AMEREEEEIE RN E

R E BT R 2 B @A nE
FHE

12. BREBR (&E) =)

ARRHEA AN SRETE T
RERTIR T BIRE -

2018
—2-NF
HK$000
TET

27,544
6,978

34,522

Number
of shares

ROEE

9,505,344,000

4,045,654,761

13,550,998,761

HK Cents
Al

0.25

153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B IS SRR B BE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-F=+—H

12.

13.

154

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 12. BRER (EE) @
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) #8 (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017, diluted loss per nNEBEz—_Z2—+F&+-_A=+—H
share is the same as basic loss per share as the potential IHFEE SREFEEBEGIRER
ordinary shares on convertible notes are anti-dilutive. EEAERE LTI RN AT B ER 2
BELTBRAEREERE -
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EE M
Directors’ emoluments is disclosed as follows: EEMEREWNT
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-—E—N\NE+=-B=+—HLE
E
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2018
fees in kind contributions Total
54 2R —E-N\F
EEnd REMAZ BARTEIMR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Executive director HITES
Zhao Guogiang B 1,482 - - 1,482
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ngan Mei Ying (i) EEEZ 0] 150 - - 150
Gu Quan Rong Br% 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Cheng Chun Ying EiRE 120 - - 120
Lee Man Tai £33 120 - - 120
Zong Ketao N 120 - - 120
2,112 - - 2,112
(i) Ms. Ngan Mei Ying appointed as a non-executive director on 10 April (i) BAXELTITR-_FT—+tFHNA+HEZES
2017 and resigned on 31 October 2018. FRTEFURN T N\GF+A=+—HE
£ -
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13. EE M€ (%)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-F—tF+=-A=+—HL#F
E
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme 2017
fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2 —T—+tF
BEXZe  REWANE  RIRGEIERT Fekd
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET AT FAT
Executive director HTES
Zhao Guogjiang el 1,092 144 = 1,236
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ngan Mei Ying (i) BEEA() 135 = = 135
Gu Quan Rong BeE 120 = = 120
Independent non-executive BYEHTES
directors
Cheng Chun Ying ERE 120 - - 120
Lee Man Tai LS 120 - - 120
Zong Ketao GRS 120 = = 120
1,707 144 - 1,851
None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any BE_Z-N\F+_A=1+—HIEFE
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ&ﬂ%@(_ z
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the —tF 8B -BE_ZT-N\F+A
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the =+ —HLFE  AREWEMEBELT
Company or as compensation for loss of office during the year B & LARR 3] 1% in A R L B sk /E 2= hn A 52
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). CHBEBAE(CT—LF  E) -
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14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 14. TEBSHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EARBAUESFTMALES  —u
Group, one (2017: one) was director of the Company whose —TE—+tF () ARBESFZHMNM
emolument is included in the disclosures in Note 13 above. The R EXHF13HE - Epmi(ZE—+
emoluments of the remaining four (2017: four) individuals who F W) AT (REAEESREREAR)
were senior management of the Group were as follows: 2T

2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Wages and salaries and other benefits Iﬁ& <5 DA B2 L fh 48 4,962 4,008
Pension fund contributions BRIRS T 36 36
4,998 4,044

Their emoluments were within the following bands 1’2 #FHME N F T oIEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
No. of No. of
employees employees
ESAE ESAZ
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 =% 1,000,000F 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T = 1,500,000 7 7T 2 2
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥I% - BERRE
Leasehold  Furniture and Motor  Natural gas
improvements fixtures vehicles pipeline Total
HENEEE  HARKE RE  RRREE aE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FER TEx TEx TEx

Cost A&
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tE-A-H 660 660 6,114 - 7,434
Additions RE 22 124 284 - 630
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-HHEAR = 68 440 27,791 28,299
Exchange differences EHEE 55 54 332 1,488 1,929
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=t-H 937 906 7170 29,279 38,292
Additions RE 285 126 - - M
Exchange differences EREE - (43) (23) (1,234) (1,500)
At31 December 2018 R-g-NE+-f=1-R 122 989 6,947 28,045 37,203

Accumulated depreciation ZHE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF-f—A 660 508 2,870 - 4,038
Charge for the year ~EEBH = 80 839 1842 2,761
Exchange differences ERER 48 39 198 30 315
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1-H 708 627 3,907 1,872 7,114
Charge for the year TEEER 52 74 927 2,787 3,840
Exchange differences ERER 32) (29) (162) (131) (354)
At31 December 2018 R=B-NE+=A=t-R 728 672 4672 4528 10,600

Carrying amount kEE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 494 317 2,275 23,517 26,603
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1-H 229 279 3,263 27,407 31,178
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-F=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REW=
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost %S
At 1 January n—HA—AH - -
Additions NE 68,449 =
Change in fair value NEEEES (10,849) -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 57,600 -
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 AEBZHREMER_ZT—N\F+=A
December 2018 have been arrived at on market value basis =+t—HzZA $f’iTEEE§%_M$TEEﬂEEE7K
carried out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited BETEEERBERAA(NEAR] AT
("APAC"), an independent valuer who holds a recognised and SEAAREEEN - ZIHEMERERR
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in REAEXEERRFIEEREMERT
the location and category of the investment properties being & K KR Rl T HA AR B o
valued.
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair HEWMEC A FLEEBE=-REBUR
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing FEERFE FVRFRATEELEHR S
fair value balance is provided below: HERMT -
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FET
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRER(F=REFERTEE)
Additions NE 68,449
Change in fair value NEEEEY (10,849)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRER(BE=REEURTERE) 57,600

Change in unrealised losses for the year included in =~ 5t ABZZR+—A=+—HBFEEZ
profit or loss for assets held at 31 December FRNREHBE 2 EE 10,849
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Notes to the Consolidated Fincmcial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value is determined by applying the direct comparison
approach which is based on prices realised on actual
transactions for properties with similar sizes, characters,
locations and other relevant factors.

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUHEGAHE

Direct comparison approach:

B -

Market selling price (transacted price) per square metre
BEFHATIHEE (R5ER)

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 there were no transfers
into or out of Level 3 or any other Level. The Group's policy is to
recognise transfers between Levels of the fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

A M IS SRR M EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

16. BEWHE &)

RFBEDLEXNEARUERE - 55 -
ENEMEBERRZMERERR ST
""""" BB BRERLBZETE -

Range

gBE

HK$13,156-18,661
13,156 %2 18,661 % 7T

NFEBEFEDLDER LAY EERAR
ErEzasERz(REERARLEE
£) e

RBE-_T-N\F+-_A=1t—HLLF
£ o R A = RS R E A
Ao REE 2 BR AN HREE 2 ®EH
RERANFEEBR M EE -
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17.

160

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Cost %S

At 1 January n—HA—AH

Additions NE

Exchange differences HE 5 =5

At 31 December Rt-—HA=+—8H
Accumulated impairment ZFRE

At 1 January W—H—H

Impairment loss BIEEE

Exchange differences b =5

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H
Carrying amount BRMEE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

The exploration and evaluation assets represents costs directly
associated with exploratory wells (drilling cost and others) that
are capitalised and pending a determination of whether
sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas reserves have
been discovered.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, provision for
impairment loss of HK$36,000,000 (2017: HK$39,000,000)
was recognised in profit or loss as the carrying amount of the
related cash-generating unit (“CGU") exceeds its recoverable
amount due to delay in the production schedules of the Kashi
Project (as defined and detailed in Note 18) as the approval of
ODP has been delayed.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

17. BIERFHEE

2018 2017
—E-NE —ZE—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT F#T
689,832 643,064
162,326 -
(34,780) 46,768
817,378 689,832
320,745 262,644
36,000 39,000
(13,591) 19,101
343,154 320,745
474,224 369,087

BHREHEEER TR 2 R AR

R (ERRA R E ) - B EAE - i

?#FE%EE?*EEE%’J%EE’UE?&E@
B RRRFEE o

BE_Z—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE
ARABRReEASM((REEEEN])
ZHEEEBBREATRESHE  REKSE
# 836,000,000 ;L( = T — £ F:
39,ooo,ooo%m)am%amﬁ§w B &AM
RIS AR H R I - BEIRMIE
B(ExMFBRKE18) £ERFBER T
RIERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Fincmciql Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost R
At 1 January »n—HA—AH
Exchange differences ME =50
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE
At 1 January ®n—H—H

Amortisation By

Impairment loss (Note) B E S ()

Exchange differences =

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

The intangible assets represent the interests in the Petroleum
Contract which were amortised on unit of production method.
No amortisation was provided for the year ended 31 December
2017. Details of the contract as described as below:

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into the Petroleum
Contract with CNPC in relation to the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and/or natural gas in North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the PRC. CNPC is a stated-owned
company established in the PRC (the “Kashi Project”).

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract signed in December 2008,
China Era agreed to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil and/or natural
gas in North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the PRC.
The maximum term of the Petroleum Contract is 30 years from
1 June 2009, subject to extension.

A M IS SRR M EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

8. BPEE

2018 2017
—E-NE T —+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,849,785 2,656,579
(120,754) 193,206
2,729,031 2,849,785
1,326,273 1,085,339
117,727 -
95,000 162,000
(60,223) 78,934
1,478,777 1,326,273
1,250,254 1,523,512

B EEROMANERD  HIREEBN
EE cBET—+tF T A=1T—8
IFFEWEIRE R - A ZFEH
T

R-ZBZENE+-_A=-+=-8 fRER
B EAAEET Y T AHAH - ARH
EEBEARDHIR(TILERER - B - 5
BRAEEOMRHARAR - FEAHE
EARPBEMKAEA D EMFE
Bl -

RER-_ZFZNF+ AR ZOHEE
B hEFERAZRKESRERELE
MEhERELREPEOMEREIE - A
A Fp B3 S 4 BB K 22 4 R 1 Jb [ 48 5 3%
REERBRFRAR - BN 2R
RFEHAE _TZENF A —HEF30
FoHRAI TR -
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18.

162

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Pursuant to Petroleum Contract, China Era shall bear all costs
required for the evaluation operations, and the development
costs shall be borne by CNPC and China Era in the proportions
of 51% and 49%, respectively. In addition, CNPC's portion of
operating costs shall be advanced by China Era and recovered
from the production of crude oil.

Under the terms of the Petroleum Contract, the evaluation
costs, development costs and operating costs are to be
recovered according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and
investment recovery oil. Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all
applicable taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is
share oil, which is apportioned between 51% by CNPC and
49% by China Era.

In March 2015, the Group has issued formal application to
CNPC to apply for a two-year extension of the exploration
period of the Kashi Project beyond the original deadline of 31
May 2015, as the exploration efforts in the cooperation site has
not been completed. On 6 December 2017, the Group and
CNPC entered into a supplement agreement to extend the
exploration period.

The Group has been carrying out exploration and evaluation
activities at the site and working with professional parties to
prepare data and information that are required for the ODP for
government approval before full production could be started.
As at 31 December 2018, the approval of ODP from National
Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC")has not yet
been obtained. The delay in finalising the ODP is the major
reason for the delay in government approval. During the year,
the Company and CNPC were given to understand that the
approval requirement of the ODP by the NDRC formerly
imposed on the Kashi Project (being an oil and gas sino-foreign
cooperation) will be relaxed. The cancellation of ODP approval
requirement was formally announced by the State Council of
the PRC under its circular No.6 of 2019 (2 #%[2019]65%) on 27
February 2019. Under the new regime, the ODP approval is no
longer required and will be replaced by a filing system. The
implementation procedures regarding the new ODP filing
system are yet announced.

8. BILEE #©)

BEGHAEL  PEFERBEAETEES
FrE A A A - B A AN 7B A A B A U
EENPRFRDFNIES1% & 49% 2t
PEIE o o - o BA SRR B ATE A4S & R
REDERFREREBAN - WEBEER
U e

BIEAMA 2GR FFHEAA  FEEK
AN % 48 8 B AN B AR B B AR 1B W e 48 A
B e A U B o FRUK IR AN ~ SR 4N B
BANMMAERHERENRERG
BHmE  ADBH  APBEEREER
FEIFRDBIDE51% £ 49% °

R-ZF—RF=A AEERTELHE
BIEARHII T B - R AERIBAN
HREBRE2E7TK - it EEZ
HMERBRRAIR_TE—AFREA=1T—
REMM A ARES  RERDELME
EHBRHRAREEMF - N _FT—+t
F+-ARA - AREEFEAHEER
RIM T - AERERAR -

AEE-EENBRARR LI EEE
BERBEZALTANHIERBRELR
B2 BB AR - EHBUTER - Hig
HEEFREELE -R_F—/\F+_-A
=t+—B BmAESEXERNNEZS
S BRRE) 2BBRAETRIL - T
BRERBHEST RIS R ARG
XZER - FR - BARAEREAME
BT BREFERERMIERE (BUhRT
SMEERB)BERMNARFAE I RELE
K ERE - R=ZT—AF-_A=+t
B PEBEBERE T -NAFFE65E
& (B8 [2019]65%) EA M EBUH #4885
BHRBRLER - EHFET - THFE
RERME T REL - B — (RS
B - mAREMEMEBNERRAELTR
(GE: TP Vi S
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Notes to the Consolidated Fincmciql Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Based on current information available to the directors, the
directors assume the ODP would be submitted to the relevant
government authority before 31 December 2019, the
development stage and commercial production of the Project
will start after the submission of the ODP.

Note:

Impairment loss of intangible assets in the amounts of HK$95,000,000 (2017:
HK$162,000,000) was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018 as
the carrying amount of the CGU for the Kashi Project exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU for the Kashi Project was
HK$1,726,000,000 (2017: HK$1,894,000,000) based on value in use calculation
and by reference to the valuation report produced by APAC. The pre-tax discount
rate used for value in use calculations is 19.5% (2017: 23.1%) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The reduction in the recoverable amount of the CGU related to
the exploration and production segment was due to delay in
the production schedules of the Kashi Project. The Company’s
management expect that the development and production
period should start immediately after the ODP finalisation. As a
result, it is necessary and appropriate to revise the production
forecast of the Kashi Project for the remaining contract period.

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results
for the year recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the Group'’s interest in the Petroleum Contract:

(a) Result for the year

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
recognised revenue approximately of HK$466,880,000
(2017:Nil) from the sales of natural gas arising from its
interests in a Petroleum Contract during the exploration and
evaluation period from 2009 to 2018 and the profit before
income tax for the year for the sales of natural gas was
approximately HK$165,034,000 (2017: loss before income
tax HK$209,266,000).

A M IS SRR M EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

8. BILEE &)

REESEAABSEN  EFEREERN

BHRBR_F-NF+=-_A=+—8H
AITER THERAER AT ERFT - %8 B MY B R
BERAREERNREXEBAZTRR
P -
BT -

RBE-ZT—\E+=-A=1+—HLFE " Iﬂ%ﬁlﬁ
BrResEAENZ REEBBETIKESEM
Zﬁﬁééé?@i@@é%%,eoo,ooo%ﬁ(:E—ti :
162,000,000 7)) - BATIHE 2 RS EAE B 2 AT
B & % 41,726,000,000% w( = T — £ F:
1,894,000,000 % 7T) * & EIBRRFEABEEFER
2EDARENEEREEE - HE-T—\F+=
R=+—RHLEFE TEERABEMRANBAR
EH195% (ZF—+F :23.1%) ©

BRAMKRIEESHNRGELEMNA
Y& gm A Ty R (10 B A ERRE
RHBLERAY - ARBERERAER
REERERMERRRAETRIKRLZ
FE - Bt - BTN T A OHRTIRR
ZEEMARBLERSE -

TXHINGEMBRENFARRBZE
= RENREERE  ATEAKERAG
HBHZ ESERE

(a) &FEXE

REBE-Z—N\F+=-A=+—H
Jtirt‘* $EIEEE*WEG:;E§%
FE_Z-)\FHEEIEHRE
EQE/E #@ZEE“ EEZRARHE
& g % #466,880,0005 T( = &
—tF B MERZRARAREER
FT 13 74 A4 F1 40 A HK$ 165,034,000
BT (ZE—+F  BEEHATER
209,266,000 7T)
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18.

164

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Assets and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

() Commitments

Capital commitments:

Contracted but not provided for in
respect of:
— Exploration and evaluation
expenditures

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

MREFEEE
BIEE
BT IAE E
EERBERE
mBNEE
mBAIE
FRBEE

BEFE

BARHEHE

ERTAMEARB T 5 FIREE

— WREAERAX

8. BILEE #©)

(b) EEREE

(9]

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
1,254 1,743
474,224 369,087
1,250,254 1,523,512
- 99,673
(11,649) -
446,695 6,538
(496,501) (392,935)
(143,736) -
1,520,541 1,607,618
IR
2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
104,834 141,254
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19. GOODWILL 19. B&
2018 2017
—E-N\F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost R
At 1 January »n—A—H 7,151 =
Business acquisition E Al - 7,151
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 7,151 7,151
Accumulated impairment Z:HRE
At 1 January Rn—H—H 6,000 -
Impairment loss (Note) EEE () 1,151 6,000
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 7,151 6,000
Carrying value BRMEE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - 1,151
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19.

166

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing on goodwiill

On 24 April 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of
100% of the equity interest of Di Maria Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Di Maria Group”) at an aggregated
consideration of HK$11,276,000 whose principal activity is
distribution of natural gas using pipeline.

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”,
management of the Group performed impairment test for
goodwill allocated to the Group’s CGUs by comparing their
recoverable amounts to their carrying amounts at the end of
the reporting period. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
determined based on value in use calculation.

Impairment loss of HK$1,151,000 (2017: HK$6,000,000) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018 as the
carrying amount of relevant CGU attributable to the Group
exceeds its recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable
amount of the CGU is RMB13,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,690,000) (2017: RMB24,500,000
equivalent to approximately HK$28,910,000) and determined
from value in use calculation based on cash flow projections
approved by the directors. The pre-tax discount rate of 17.3%
(2017: 20.4%) per annum is used in the calculation of cash
flow projections which was performed by an independent
valuer.

19. & (®)

7R R R

RCE—+ENA=-+EAE - REFERK
U B 3B R gn AR A 7 M E B A R (33
BRTER]) 2100%#E - “AREA
11,276, 00087 EXEXBKAFRE
EDHERAR °

REEFBGFHERE365 [ EERE] -
AEBEEEBCDANEEAKERSE
EEBEMHNEEETRENR - AT
SHRERAAKRE e EEEREE - 3B
SEABMNAKNE S RRIZEREER
BEREE -

B E5381,151,0008 T ( —Z T — + & -
6,000,000 L) REZE S —N\F+=
A=+—HILFERRABEBERSEL
B 7RmERBHENKESE - ReE
EENNEFATRESEAEARE
13,000,000 7T (1B E 7 4914,690,000# 7T )

—E—+F: ARK¥24,500,0007T ' 1H
B 124928,910,000T) - WREFERE
Bt 8% ERESHANBARS RS
BT REREBEEAEATF17.3% (=
T—+F:204%) B RETA—BBEY
HEMESL -
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

v'.R

20. R B R TR 2=

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2018 are as follows:

Name

RAER

China Energy Resources
Holdings Ltd

FRERERARAR

Totalbuild Investments Group
(Hong Kong) Limited

HERESE(FR)BRAA

China Era Energy Power Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited

MEERERRE (B)
BRAR

Zhong Neng Finance Limited

R BERAR
Di Maria Limited
EBENEERAR

Team Lucky Development Limited
REERERAT

Fortune Great Limited
EEARAH

RAUBREENAEIERAT

(Karamay Fuhai Petroleum Chemical

Engineering Co., Limited)*

RUBKEELRETERAR

RAUBKEERRERAR

(Karamay Weirun Gas Co., Limited)*

RABKEERRERAR

Form of business
structure

ERERIA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
BRAR

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
BRAA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
BRAH

Limited liability company
BRAF

Limited liability company

ARAH

Limited liability company

BRAH]

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
HMARL/
RIE%/ %

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
RBEAES
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC

e

PRC

HE

Country/place of
operation

BEAR/ MY

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
PRC
T
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC

T

PRC

fE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

*  For identification purposes only

China Energy Development Holdings Limited HEl#E

ZAN/N
TZMBR

Principal Activities

IEEH

Sales of food and
beverages and
investment holding

EERRRAKER
REERR

Investment holding

REZR

Oiland gas
exploration

HRENR

Money lending
g

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

Distribution of natural
gas

DERAR

EA—rMTE

ey
Gl

* EHES

AIRZE

Issued and fully
paid share capital

BRTREZRE

Ordinary share HK$1

EER1EL

Ordinary share US$ 1
ERR1ET
Ordinary share HK$1
Lam T
Ordinary share HK$1
LERET
Ordinary share
HK$10,000
LR 10,0008 T

Ordinary share HK$2
ERR2ET

Ordinary share HK$1
TRR1AT

Ordinary share
RMB5,000,000

BRRARE
5,000,000 7C

Ordinary share
RMB130,000,000

ERRARY
130,000,0007¢

Notes to the Consolidated Fincmcial Statements
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31 December 2018 —E— \F+-F=+—H

~NFT=A=t+-AZ
RZ BT

Percentage of
interests held

BHEERADL
Directly Indirectly
B HE

100% =

100% =

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

= 51%

- 2601%

RFRBEZITEAER
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21. DEFERRED TAXATION

21. EERIE

(@) RNEEYBRARRZELEHRIRE

(@) The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in the

consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from:

E/(BE)ARIBImT

ERBHEAE /(AR ELR :

Exploration

costs Tax losses Total
Bh R B A BIEEE FCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FEIT FHEIT FEIT
(Note)
(BfF5E)
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—HF—H 86,373 - 86,373
Movements for the year FEEH(ME10)

(Note 10) 6,780 - 6,780
Exchange differences ] 6,520 - 6,520
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-fA=1+—H 99,673 - 99,673
Movements for the year FEEF (fizE10)

(Note 10) (180,902) 70,013 (110,889)
Exchange differences [EHERE 1,961 (2,394) (433)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NF+=-HA=+—-H (79,268) 67,619 (11,649)
Note: Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) represented deductible/taxable sy - BEBIBEE, (AE)REEREF

temporary difference in relation to exploration and evaluation
activities in the PRC and the recoverability depends on the future

B2 B R Ko wT ik VB B 2 BB AT H00RL FE
ARIERE - AT E M BURR I IR

profitability of the Kashi Project. BZRREFgES -

SLEA TS R ¥R B B 2R R R

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes: M -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets EEFRIB(BE) BE (11,649) 99,673
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B B35 R R Y 5E

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

n‘l'.F

21. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative Hong Kong and the PRC tax losses
of approximate HK$18,166,300 and HK$892,000 as at
31 December 2018 respectively (2017: HK$17,226,000
and HK$1,369,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the
entity. The Hong Kong tax losses will not expire under
the current relevant tax legislation while the PRC tax
losses will expire in five years.

10% PRC dividend withholding tax would be payable on
the distribution of undistributed profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC. As at 31 December
2018, no deferred tax liabilities have been recognised as

(b)

the Group’s PRC subsidiaries have no undistributed

profits (2017: Nil).

22. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

21. EZERIE (&)

AERELERAEE

AEBTEGA-_ZT—N\E+ A
=+t HRFABERPRHEEERE
2 Bl #718,166,3007% JT £ 892,000
BIL(ZZ— 1% :17,226,0007%
7T X% 1,369,000/8 7T ) HERIR LR B
BE RAARER ZHABENHIER
EREBTANREEIBHAZEEE
ZARRERTEF o RIFIRITIARES
Bk BAREBESTSEE

M ERIBEEER TR -

REB/AIR 10% $h 0 KA P B Rk AL
Z M B R B Z R ik ) Bk B

BBFMNB - R=F—N\F+=A
=+—0 BASEEZFENE
DAL RS RRF (Bt
) BERRAMEEHES

EEO

22. FEUWERRX

Sales of natural gas (Note (a)) RARIEE (M3 a)
Loan and interest receivables FERE R R FIE
— money lending business (Note (b)) — WEZEB (FE ()
— others (Note () — E A (FRE()

Less: Expected credit losses

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

" REMERER

BERMBIERARAR

2018 2017

S S A
HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FH&T

439,739 -

37,100 37,100

476,839 37,100

(37,243) (37,100)

439,596 -
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22.

170

ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement in the expected credit losses in respect of account
receivable is as follows:

Balance at 1 January R—RA—Rz#&&#%
Expected credit losses recognised during R ERER 2 FEHEEEE
the year
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—B2#&#%
Notes: BT

(a) Sales of natural gas represent the receivables recognised under the
production sharing contract with CNPC for the Group’s operation in
Kashi, the PRC. The Group recognised the revenue in relation to this
operation during the current period. The entire balance of sales of natural
gas as at 31 December 2018 are not yet past due. The Group did not hold
any collateral over the balance.

The balance of sales of natural gas are non-interest-bearing and pledged
to secure the bank borrowings of the Group in Note 27.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has advanced a
loan of HK$27,500,000 to China Harvest HK Investment Limited (“China
Harvest"), which has defaulted in payment. The loan is secured by a legal
charge over the entire issued share capital of China Harvest. To protect
the interest of the Group, due to the default in payment by the borrower,
the shares of China Harvest transferred to the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Based on the information available to the
Company, the principal assets of China Harvest are two advances made
to two independent third parties totalling HK$61 million, and its principal
liabilities are an amount due to the former shareholder and the amount
due to the Group. These balances have been recognised under other
receivables and other payables in this consolidated financial statements.

22. BUWEBRRR (&)

EURRTEEEBRZEHMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
37,100 37,100

143 -

37,243 37,100

ARRBERRBATE L MEET L E
EBORAKNRAEE NP RIR M 2 XBHER
Z FEMRIA $§%E’$$ﬁ%ﬁ&'¢t%¥%i‘%ﬁ§m
Wi - RARHEZZMEHRR T~ /\F
ToA=t+—HAEREH REEXERZ
BT RS o

RARHEZBRRBTF S LEEEFN
RN 27 Fril 2 REEBRTTIEE -

RBE-_ZT—+E+-_A=+—HIFEE "
AEEBERMTEEBREERERAR ([
H |) B3 27,500,000 7T 0 MR EH R
B BRUREN2HEHTROMEE
W AER - BRERABRNR - BRE
AEENFE  PEBRHVERBE=Z—t
FH+ZA=Z+-BLTFEEEALE - RIE
ARAARFGZER  FENEEEERM
MEBLE=HAEHOMBERR B8EA
61,000,000 7 - MEEZ & EREMNATR
RARIBREMNAREEBRIE - ZFEBR AL
A B TS $R R /0 H th B W R IR 2 H i B A FRE
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22. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o]

Loan receivable from an independent third party, Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited (“Sing Pao”), which was unsecured, interest-bearing
at 1% per month and repayable within 1 year have been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2011. The loan receivable from Sing
Pao is secured by a personal guarantee of a third party.

Sing Pao’s shares were listed on the SEHK but was delisted on 18 August
2015. During the year ended 31 December 2015, a winding-up order was
made against Sing Pao and the Group has already submitted proof of
debt form to liquidator of Sing Pao on 7 January 2016. On 2 November
2017, the Group's legal advisor was informed by the liquidator that the
process of realisation of assets of Sing Pao was completed and there was
unlikely to be any surplus assets for distribution to creditors (including the
Company) after payment of the costs of the liquidation.

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22. EUBRK

BT -

(]

A M IS SRR M EE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-F=+—H

NE-Y
(&)

e — %@i%‘ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@@ﬂ
UﬁﬁDE RAREIE - G AR R1%E

WAR—FANEE ZRAERBE=
B+ A=+ —HLFERERE -
FEA PR R E SR — B E =T EAERIELR
o

BRERBRAD 2 AT BB T £ - AR =
Z-RFENATNBBRR - BE-T—1F
TZA=+—HLLFE  KBRETERS -
MAKBETFER -~ RF—ALARKE
MBS ARRXERERER N _T—tF+—
A-H AEENEZEREERASA
KRB EEZRE T XNBERRARET
E&ﬁﬁéTﬁ“&?E%A&@%K@T)
BEMEARIR o

23. E/A%E{EE‘ME%&ZQEQE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Trading securities listed in Hong Kong, REBLTMZEEES
at fair value BAEEE 61,476 74,540
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or BEATEEFAEGZZERNEEZART

EBEDENRERNERT IS ZRHIRE -

loss are based on their current bid price in an active market.
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24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HibEWRTE - TS RANRK
PREPAYMENTS b1 |
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other receivables, deposits and EMEWEIA - A1 & RIBFSRIE
prepayments (Note (a)) (MF5E @) 19,466 90,295
Refundable deposits — ARERI S — TEBLE (MR D))
Mr. Wang Jian Guo (Note (b)) 20,725 20,725
Refundable deposits — (Note (c)) ARERT&— () 29,000 =
69,191 111,020
Less: Expected credit losses B TEHEEEE
— Refundable deposit (Note (b)) — AREE] € (3 () (20,725) (20,725)
— Other receivables and deposits — HA W IE RiRe (14,730) (11,883)
(35,455) (32,608)
33,736 78,412
Movement in the expected credit losses in respect of other ERHEMERFRERES ZEHREES
receivables and deposits is as follows: SEBNT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance at 31 December under HKAS 39  RIEFS ST ERE 395N+ A
=t+—BZ&R 32,608 32,608
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 ¥ X E B & B IS HE R 955
(Note 2(a) A) 2 (MI5E2() A) 21,367 =
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—HA—B 2 &R 53,975 32,608
Reversal of expected credit losses during ~ FF B EFEH{Z B &8
the year (6,411) =
Disposal of subsidiary HEHBAR (12,109) =
Balance at 31 December R+—RA=+—RB2&% 35,455 32,608
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24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El&

As at 31 December 2017, as detailed in Note 22(b), included in other
receivables are two advances made to two independent third parties
totalling HK$61 million recognised by the Group as a results of default in
payment by China Harvest.

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo, an independent third party
and Joy Even International Limited (“Joy Even”), a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the agreement in relation to the proposed acquisition
of the 51% equity interest in each of the target companies, Bu Tuo
County Wu Zhou Minerals Limited Liability Company (fi#E52 A RES
fREFAR]) and Hui Li County Wan Feng Mining Limited Liability
Company (IS ELREEERET2AF]) of an aggregate consideration
of RMB498 million (equivalent of HK$516 million) (the “Agreement”).
Both companies are limited liability companies established in the PRC. The
principal activities of both companies are in the development of mines in
the PRC. A refundable deposit of HK$20,725,000 was paid (equivalent to
RMB20,000,000) to Mr. Wang Jian Guo upon signing of the agreement.
On 31 July 2008, the Company executed the Deed of termination
regarding the proposed acquisitions, whereby subject to the return of the
refundable deposit, both parties shall be released and discharged from
their respective obligations under the Agreement. On 10 March 2011, Joy
Even issued a Writ of Summons against Mr. Wang Jian Guo claiming the
principal and interest on the refundable deposits. On 18 June 2013, the
Court of First Instance adjudged that Mr. Wang Jian Guo shall pay to Joy
Even the sum of RMB22,723,287 or Hong Kong Dollar equivalent. The
Group is now considering actions to recover the said amount from Mr.
Wang Jian Guo. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the refundable
deposits were impaired and there is no provision for impairment (2017:
Nil) charged to profit or loss for the year.

On 31 December 2018, the Group entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with a third party vendor
which is independent of and not connected with the Group and its
connected persons, in relation to the proposed investment by the Group
in a energy project in mainland China which is owned and operated by
corporate entities whose issued share capitals are ultimately wholly-
owned by the vendor. Reference to the announcements of the Group
dated 31 December 2018 in relation to the MOU, the deposit of
HK$29,000,000 shall be refundable if the proposed investment does not
proceed to completion for whatever reason.

31 December 2018 — = —

Hfl R

A M IS SRR M EE

NF+=ZRA=+—H

RIE - 7] & RFEMNRK

IE (%)

SR IERAR LT » Annual Report F#f 2018

RZZ—+tF+=-A=+—8" HWk=E

b) BT it - H i & U 5k I8 B 4E R R 4 98 3L
FE=FEHMIBEERR - #%/361,000,000
B MASERPEEXNREERZS
FRIE ©

#_YYtinﬂ +mE - FrRxECE

E=7)RAHIEEREAR AR ([HRIE] (K
%@zmgﬂﬂ)ﬁimiﬂﬁmﬁn'mﬁ
FHEEBEREBEER Tﬁm%EMEéﬁm
FEERAIREEEEYBESREELD
EZM%%%v@ﬁﬁﬁAEM@&mqmo
7T ($% 7 516,000,000787T) - MERAFH A
REBEKZZERAR - EBEEKHBRFR
BEREES - AEBERNE RERATR
B 5% A A AR | 5T 4 20,725,000 78 7T (M
M AR#20,000,0007T) e R=ZTENF LA
=+—B AARENBEREZRKESEZ
RIERIE - Bt ZAREAREIE] & o TR
BEaRgZpEzET - RZ2E——%=A
+H - HIERERBEEEBELREASHK B
AAREZEEZASENE - RZT—=F
NATNEB BRAEEARTIEBRLEARN
1RIES &5 AR 22,723,287 TR EEH
To e NEBEIRIFEERRTEY - MTREBEL
AE e E R-E—N\ER-_T—+
F+ZA=+—8B " 2PAEEKRSHER
B BYEBAATEZBSHBRRERE (=
T—+FE) o

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—80 AQAIHEE
=HEH(ABURARERHABEALAS
?&%Mﬂ%ﬁ‘@)ETI*%K%%&%@??JZEET
s FRETE])  REEHRAEE
ﬁ%xﬁ&aﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁﬁ
EXEBBEAMEZLNPE AL — @
RIER - K2EREBEAPR-Z—\F+=
A=+ —REBRRBETENAM Mz
é&ﬁl&ﬂﬁlﬂi%%ﬁis&%ﬂ g
29,000,000 7T ] TR

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B IS SRR B BE

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-F=+—H

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HEFRIE R BT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current: FEME
Exploration and evaluation cost payables — #1#& & & FE AT A AN (MI5E (@)
(Note (a)) 143,736 -
Current: mE:
Exploration and evaluation cost payables — #11% & & FE AT A AN (BT 5E (@)
(Note (a)) 353,956 421,119
Other payables and accruals (Note (b)) E P& A< FRIB R FE R R IR (M EE (b)) 90,812 115,783
444,768 536,902
588,504 536,902
Notes: fEE -
(@) Exploration and evaluation cost payables represents balances payable to (a) iR E M MRM 17 TR E - B3R R
sub-contractors engaged by the Group to perform exploration and n¥1ﬁﬁ)€$hﬁ§ﬁ%%%@§ﬁé CREHEBH
evaluation works on the area designated in the Petroleum Contract as HE 2 BEGETRRT A THEZD RENE

7 o

disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

()  EIABESEREEFMNENT 4% E6%(=

(b) Included above is other payables bearing fixed interest rates ranging from T 4% 3 6% )58 2 E AR 2
4% to 6% (2017: ranging from 4% to 6%) per annum amounted to 175 . 4% A11580 OOO;%;_EI(D\: %\—Eﬁ g
HK$11,580,000 (2017: HK$11,000,000). 11,000,000 77T) °

26. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 26. EARIEE A + > s

Amounts due to a shareholder and B — BRI R A EE

non-controlling interests

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and repayable on Sy SIE A . B R EEREE

demand.
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31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. SR1TEE

Secured bank borrowings — current BEIFRITEE
The bank loans are secured by the account receivables of sale
of natural gas (Note 22) under the Petroleum Contract dated

22 December 2008 and the supplemental contract dated 6
December 2017.

The effective interest rates of the bank loans was 6.98% per
annum at 31 December 2018.

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s financial
position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Company was to
breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand. In addition, certain of the Company’s
term loan agreements contain clauses which give the lender
the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment
at any time irrespective of whether the Company has complied
with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Company regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans and does not consider it probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long as the
Company continues to meet these requirements. Further details
of the Company’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 40(b). As at 31 December 2018 none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

2018 2017
—E-NE T —+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
65,931 -

BITEEUREBSHA-ZSTNGF+=
A+ ZHzRABEHOREHAZET —+
FH+_ARNBZBREAGHOZRARBEE
Z FEMER K (BT 5E 22) BRI -

R-ZZE—-NE+-A=1+—8 ' FTER
ZEBRFFEE6.98% °

FERITREYABTERARNASETH
BRI RARR 2 A - IWEROE AR
IR 2 (B R LD » WARRIER
ZH) - CIRIBE A WERZEEER - it
S RRBzETEREFRHAR SR T
E&ﬁ/\%ﬁé@’]l Z SRR B [ B By 28
RZEN(PRARAREEETROR
J@ﬁﬂ%fﬁ}%%’&ﬁ&)Zﬂm& °

RARIEHERHEBFTZERZNZER
J/)\&% TREESE ;f\@ﬁfﬁvirf'aﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ

RRERNRBEFEZERTE - RITT
RATBATR HBRERERER - BEAR
RIEERSESRRCE—PHFBHR
fizr4ob) c RZE—-—NF+A=+—
H SMEEREHECERRE 2L -
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B B 35 #R R Y 5E

31 December 2018 —E— \F+-F=+—H

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju, as
guarantor and beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the Vendor,
entered into the agreement (the “Agreement”) in relation to
proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in Totalbuild
Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Totalbuild
Investments”). Totalbuild Investments held the entire issued
share capital of China Era which had entered into the
Petroleum Contract with CNPC as disclose in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the “First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
“Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries
(the “Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

As a result of completion of the Acquisition and the First
Designated Area, the Tranche 1 consideration in the sum of
HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with Tranche 1
convertible notes of HK$2,558,000,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.168 each, to the Vendor including the shortfall
amount of HK$1,279,000,000 which was deposited with an
escrow agent pursuant to the Agreement. The sale loan
consideration payable by the Company in the sum of
HK$906,299,000 was satisfied by deducting the deposit in the
sum of HK$804,000,000 and with the balance of
HK$102,299,000 to be settled in cash or otherwise agreed.

28. MARKRE

RZZBEZNF—AZ1+=H  ~QF
AIREZEEBRAR(TER D REEE
TEWERBTZERARET 282 %
TRAZESEEAN)  PEFRUES
BROZERN)REBRREXARESHE
(BB)BRAT([HAIKRE]) 2 100% B
Az mal e ([ i) - HAl®R
BERKATEHER2H2HTRA M
TERFRETBAMEBER Y T AH
BH (A M EREME18FARE) -

RZT——F—A=H  KERMRZEAL
RAZF - HEHR(FE-—EEHE])
RHEAKEREKBAR ([HARER
M) 22MERTRA(TWEEE] 2
FTA IR BZRK -

AR ERBIBEEERE —FEEHE - A
NEIBIRFREREB0.168 B TR E /2
775 —#£2,558,000,000 78 7T 2 A 2 IR =
B - A8 —# 8 2,558,000,000 7%
T(ERERBHEERNEERENE
%8 1,279,000,0007870) ° ANQA A 2 58
E BB 906,299,000 7T B 45 38 08
1% 4 804,000,000% Tt M E 1+ &%
102,299,000 % 7T B LATR & 3k 13 7€ < H Ath
HRER -
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 convertible notes (“Shortfall Notes”)
should only be released to the Vendor upon the Company
having received a written certificate issued by the competent
evaluator confirming that the First Designated Area be
evaluated on the basis of unrisked economic evaluation on or
before 31 May 2015 (the “Relevant Period”). No such written
certificate was received by the Company on or before 31 May
2015. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Shortfall Notes
have been returned to the Company for cancellation. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, a gain of HK$92,459,000
was recognised in profit or loss, and approximately
HK$1,309,405,000 related to equity component of the
convertible notes have been transferred from convertible notes
reserve to accumulated losses as the result of the cancellation
of convertible notes.

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second designated
area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate shareholders’
approval will be required for the Acquisition of the second
designated area by issuing additional convertible notes of not
more than HK$7,442,000,000 subjected to the fulfillment of
certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement within the
Relevant Period.

The Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$2,558,000,000 with maturity in 30 years was
issued on 3 January 2011. The convertible notes do not bear
any interest and are freely transferable, provided that where
the convertible notes are intended to be transferred to a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Group
(other than the associates of the noteholder) such transfer shall
comply with the requirements under the Listing Rules and/or
requirements imposed by the SEHK, if any.

28. AR EE &)

B Z e - Z£%81,279,000, ooo;‘%ﬁz
RBRER(ZEZEEDETREAA
BEWBREFNEEMBEHE@ES J&’sﬁ%
—EEMWEER T —RAFHRA=FT—
Hekl 2 AT ([ EEAEME ) RIRER R ACE
FHEEETGE - FARER c AREIRZ
E-RAFRA=-t+—HI AW EEE
EHEMEE - REZBE 2GR =58
FRERERAGHETE BE_T—RF
+ZA=Z+—RHLEFE AARAZHEA
R S48 i 72 48 2 R 58 M 2 92,459,000
B IBRREBEERSITSOMEE 2L
1,309,405,000,8 7T & M A # A% 15 [
EREREEIE -

BEoh - IRIEZ R - N EE W EER T
ERRBEIETEHE FS kiR o R
ERHERZEER H TIEGER
1T T 1B 38 7,442,000,000 %8 7T 2 BBHNA]
BRRZEB KBS —EEE - BREE
B IRERBLER - FAIEE -

F-HEEBTBRREEASTE A
2,558,000,000 8 JT ° T%@Hﬁﬂgzimﬁ
BAxTEHH -_T——F— A=H#:
=t+FER - TRREBETFERTEH
Bk MM RRERREETEREE
AN AT REBBEEAL(EE
B EWAR) - RIBEBEZEAFTE LTH
Al ZHRER/ S EHZHAE (D
)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B 35 S R MY 5E

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-_A=+—H

28.

178

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, provided that (i)
no conversion rights attached to the convertible notes may be
exercised, to the extent that following such exercise, a holder
of the convertible notes and parties acting in concert with it,
taken together, will directly or indirectly, control or be
interested in 30% or more of the entire issued shares of the
Company (or in such percentage of the issued share capital of
the Company as may from time to time be specified in the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being the level
for triggering a mandatory general offer); and (ii) no holder of
the convertible notes shall exercise the conversion right
attached to the convertible notes held by such holders if
immediately after such conversion, the public float of the
shares fall below the minimum public float requirement
stipulated under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules as required by
the SEHK. The conversion price of HK$0.168 per share is
subject to adjustment for consolidation, sub-division or re-
classification of shares, capital reduction, rights issues and
other events which have diluting effects on the issued share
capital of the Company.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible
notes. The fair value of the liability component, included in the
non-current liabilities, was calculated using a market interest
rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The effective interest
rate of the liabilities component is 11% and the interest
expenses will be charged to profit or loss over the loan periods.
The equity component of the convertible notes, representing
the difference of the fair value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the liabilities component, was included in the
owner’s equity and denoted as convertible notes reserves.

8. MEARERE »)

ZEFEATRETRRRBA=TFR
& B IR R AR (B B A% 0.168 78 TT 5 2 SR ak 26
DABRBREEASERRARARNE
B M) MBEBITER  TREREERRS
EANBEE-HITHALHAELEESK
R4 S B 30% 80 A AR B2 &R
BEITRO#ER (BB aKERE
SF R AT BE NS AT B 2 5| B 08 ) M 2 UK
BEZZAQNRBBRITRAZEDL) -
BB 1T AT IR R SR AR PR 5 R © R (ii)
WMERERLIRE  BROZAREREREK
P _ETH R B 25 8.08 {6 FT ] BB X FT AR &
2REARERERT - AT BRERZEEES
EANBTEZER/BEAMBITRRE
AT K i - iR ESNR0.168 B T A]
EERMDE G - IFAKEFTHE - B
AR HEEREMEANT B BITRALE
EBYEEHRELAE -

BEND MESE D 2 A FEENET
AHRREREETE - AENSZATEE
(BRRIFRBAE) ERRFIEIRRK
REZTENERFE - AEID 2 ERHM
RXHB1%  MASRAXERERBAE
Baiiks - JMREBRZ ER D (KK
AMEREAFEERBERY A FE
BE2ZB) i ABAEAZRGEARKTR
AR RIR S
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) AR ERE )
The movement of the principal amount, liability component AR EEASTE « BERD RERID
and equity component of the convertible notes are as follows: ZEEINT

Carrying amount

IREE
Liability Equity
component component
aEis I D
HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FAET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—H—H 58,039 695,828
Interest expenses (Note 8) FEFRZ (HFES) 6,450 =
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+-H=1+—H 64,489 695,828
Interest expenses (Note 8) FEFZ (HFES) 6,978 =
At 31 December 2018 R-EE—-N\E+=-H=+—H 71,467 695,828
Up to 31 December 2018, convertible notes with principal BEEZ-E-N\F+-A=1+—H KA&HE
amount of HK$599,330,000 have converted into ordinary 7,%599,330 000/§7EZTWHXZ<FERW‘
shares of the Company. No convertible notes have been BARAIEAR HE_ZT-—\FEZF
converted during the years ended 31 December 2018 and *ti‘k_ﬂ_‘f' AIEFE - WA
2017. REBREH I

The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of RZE-NEFRZE—+F+-A=+—
HK$679,670,000 as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 have = T }ﬁ P& }F 2 AREBEXESBER
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3 679,670,000/%75 MmEEAR A%TH A

January 2011. —ET——F—A=B)Bitm=tF-
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
2018 2017
—2-N\f it Sl 3
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
ROEE E kin &R g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: iy
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each ~ BREE0.05B T2 LBR
At 1 January and 31 December R—RA—BR
+-A=1+—H 25,000,000,000 1,250,000  25,000,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: BRETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each ~ BRREE0.058 T2 TAAR
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—Hk
+-A=+—H 9,505,344,000 475,267 9,505,344,000 475,267
30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. BERGESTE
Under the terms of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) BEANTGIR-_ZE—=F<A_+HH
adopted conditionally by the Company on 25 June 2013, the BIEHEW BRE 2 ([ZeH8 ) 1§
directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant options ;o ARANBEEHA BB RAAD T RENE
to the directors, employees and consultants of the Company NBEvESE - EEREBEMELERENZ
and its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares of the Company. BEARNT Z R ©
The maximum number of unexercised share options currently BIEZAEARAARRITAIE T ZR{TE
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount B FREEERNZ LRI
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the TEE AT ERIBEE =TGN 2
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share 30% o [EfEBBI ERE—TRH 2B
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ RekE LB R RS FER IR -

approval in a general meeting.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
option granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within 12 months period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
immediately after the date on which the option is deemed to
be granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be notified
by the directors to each grantee which shall not be more than
10 years from the date on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted. According to the Scheme, there is no
provision requiring a minimum holding period before an option
may be exercised. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance on grant of an option under the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the SEHK
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of
the share options; (i) the average SEHK closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

No shares options were granted and exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

30. ERRAESTEI ()

BYARRES  TRAHKFEEZREL
HEMBEA L ZBRENESEEE
B IERMITES 2 & o AN EFEE
FTZEAABRTFARARIEFERRL B
IEMITE S R H MR AT 2 BIRHE -
MEBARRREMEREEBITRMDZ
0.1% Bk 48 {8 8 8 5,000,000 7% JT 2 f% 17
(R EBZARRBRNDERTE) A
EAERBRRERASESRELE

EREBREREERERKEAZAE
ESBASARABRESHZ BB -
AR BR L AT 8l Z IR BB R 1T R A - 5%
BHAR B B E R R 2
RETSEE 4 - RIEZXTE - 176
BRENYBSZESER AT - RIFZ
AEERAR L ZBEREMN B ZRBAR
BR1BTT-

BRETEESHESEE - ETEIN
T =Fz2&SE  AORKRLEREZ
BB X PR AN 2 A B fn 2 W 1B - (i)
SEERLBREZAMAEARZHBR
PP AR R BB 2 g Ui (8 ¢ K (i)
ARRAEMEE °

B B T ESA ARBURE R
BERRE LIRE 2R -

BE_Z2—N\Fk-_ZF—+tF+=A
=+ HLEFE TERHRTEER
7% o
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31. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

182

FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a shareholder

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes

Net assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
iSE) NI £

REBEE
BRFEE ARG
ZERMEE
H A EWGRIR - 712 R
2R
fﬁ‘i\&fﬁﬁ Bk

REBEE
Bt FEAS RIR e e ET IR
FEf — R AR IR

RBEERE
BEERERRBAE

FRBEE
QE-JEES

BEFE

i
LN
Edi

MR

The financial statement was approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2019.

Zhao Guogiang

itk
Director

EE

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

31.

IR A B M AR &

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M FET FET
1,590,593 1,601,938

1,590,593 1,601,938

61,476 74,540

28,764 1,097

48,694 131,724

138,934 207,361

3,331 6,845

40,402 40,402

43,733 47,247

95,201 160,114

1,685,794 1,762,052

71,467 64,489

71,467 64,489

1,614,327 1,697,563

29 475,267 475,267
32 1,139,060 1,222,296
1,614,327 1,697,563
EFeR_T—NF=ZA=-+B#E

RN RZERHEHRE -

Gu Quan Rong
B

Director

EF
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32. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 32. XA#HE
Contributed Share Convertible  Accumulated
surplus premium  notes reserve losses Total
BERRAEL ROEE TARZERE By e
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TAT TET
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))

(F3 @) (H2 (o) ()
At 1 January 2017 RZF—t5-A-H 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,135,520) 1,330,844

Loss and total comprehensive FEEBERZANE

income for the year ] 5 - - (108,548) (108,548)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+&+=A
S=1 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,244,068) 1,222,296

Profit and total comprehensive ~ AFEHFREE

income for the year gyt - - - (83,236) (83,236)
At 31 December 2018 R=2-NE+=A
=+-A 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,327,304) 1,139,060
Notes: MaE
(a) The contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal (a) BEHRABBIRE_ST_F—A++tA
value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange for the issued AEFSHEE  AUKRIBRAR 2B BT
share capital of the subsidiaries and the value of the underlying assets of IR 81T 2 AN A B (5 2 B KB 2 7
the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 17 January ZHBEEEME 2 E58 -
2002.
(b)  Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium by BERSHESATEZHRE ROBERE
account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company under certain ETFBERATADRTARRMRR - RiDEHE
circumstances. It represents the excess of the nominal value of shares EHBEAAREEHITRNABECHE -

issued by the Company.

() The convertible notes reserve represents the equity component of the (© RREERFEECBRTIRRER ZER
convertible notes issued (i.e. option to convert the note into share capital). T (BN RERERAR ZIEERE)
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33. COMMITMENTS 33. &I
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHERE
The Group leases certain of its staff quarters, offices and AREBRBE IO RHEEEHE LB
warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease HRETEIBSE MWARAEKE
arrangements with lease terms ranging from one to two B R —EMFTE - RZT
years. At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had —N\EFER_E—+tF+_A=+—
total future minimum lease payments under non- B AEERENTSIFEEEH
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: PRAIHGHEERE 2 RREN KIE
HEeEER -
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Within one year R—FA 3,862 3,959
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ SE-FE=FHF (BIEEREMT) 5,097 9,110
8,959 13,069
(b) Capital commitments (b) EAR&EIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET
Contracted but not provided for in EETAERB TS EERE -
respect of:
— exploration and evaluation — R R
expenditures 104,834 141,254
— capital contribution in a subsidiary — B RREE 118,650 123,900

184 China Energy Development Holdings Limited R EI&EIRBIZ R BRAE > Annual Report 3k 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B 35 SR R Y EE

31 December 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY 34. BB RBAEALIRS
TRANSACTIONS
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which ARG EHEBRARGIEE AT ZH B
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on REET 2R HEREERB L - W
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as those HNAHTFIREE - BREAEHRREMES
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, DEBEIN  AEEEIFAREEKE A A
the Group had the following material transactions with related R NEEALTBUTEARS

and connected parties which are not members of the Group:

Key management personnel remuneration FTEEEAESME

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, KBTI AREETEEEBABZMNE (B1EMR
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed KAREELT N8 BENGRE VB
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. WMEMFE13 o
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35.

186

LITIGATION

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements (a) dated
16 September 2013 in relation to media reports about Mr.
Wang Guoju; (b) dated 7 June 2015 in relation to charges
against Mr. Wang Guoju for illegal operation crime involving
allegations about improper conduct during the obtaining of the
Petroleum Contract (the “lllegal Operation Charge”); (c)
dated 17 June 2015 in relation to the commencement of the
Litigation in the Grand Court of the Cayman islands (the
“Cayman Court"”) against (inter alia) the Defendants (including
Mr. Wang Guoju and UK Prolific) with the view to obtaining
Cayman Court's order to have the Totalbuild Transaction
declared void or rescinded and have damages awarded to the
Company; (d) dated 25 June 2015 in relation to the obtaining
by the Company of the Injunction Order from the Cayman
Court restraining the Defendants from disposing of,
transferring, dealing in, diminishing the value of or exercising
voting rights in respect of 1.86 billion issued Shares (the
“Restrained Shares”), and restraining the Defendants from
converting convertible bonds representing 13,366,190,476
underlying Shares (the “Restrained CBs"); (e) dated 18 August
2015 in relation to the continuation of the Injunction Order
against the Company’s undertaking not to issue or deal with
additional Shares or securities without leave of the Cayman
Court until the conclusion of the trial relating to the Litigation
or further order by the Cayman Court (the “Company’s
Undertaking”); and (f) dated 6 December 2017 in relation to
the signing of the Supplemental Contract between the Group
and CNPC to extend the First Phase exploration period by way
of supplement and amendment to the original Petroleum
Contract. Unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized
terms used in this section shall have the same meanings as
defined in the said announcements.

35.

¥

Hid/N

R ARAE (@ BHAEZZE—=F 1A
TREHNAH - NABEEIEELENE
Mg OB A—Z—REANALH
R RRBBTEELAWREFIEL
g APy RERNESRREHNNE
TETRHNEE(FELERE])  (OH
BHAEZT AT ATEAENRM KA
R (AR s (BETRESE
KUK Prolific) RSB E X ER(TEE
HEZKRDFABFL S KESHSE
EERHEHS FHRARSGEERES
RS R B FI AR A R ESERE - (d) B
HA-—ZE—RHENA-THAENHLAH K
AEBARAFRSHESHE ARG
2 UNEHHELE BEE B E
1,860,000,000 [i% B 2 17 I {7 ([ 32 BR I B&
7 DR IBE BRI EERITHIRERE -
N 2SI 4 5 88 #8581 13,366,190,476 A%
RO RRES ([ ZREITHRR
BF D @BHAEZT—HFNATN
BRI - NABALHSESEE - B
BARARNGAEGE  BEEEBFLNEMNTLE
SFASHEERAE—FPmLS 2 AR
ATEEARNSHREMNEERT NG
MTEITHEEBEIIMND KBS (FRD
AMERR ] ROBBHA-ZT—tF
TZANEMAMH - RABBEAREE ST
HAHEEEfaE  SRRTRkE
FIRFIAMEL  BHEHE—BRE
R -BXEZHAIE  NEFTAFRENE L
MR EE A BHREE -
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LITIGATION (Continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27
December 2017, following the signing of the Supplemental
Contract with CNPC on 6 December 2017, the Company was
informed by Mr. Wang Guoju and his legal representative that
the lllegal Operation Charge against Mr. Wang Guoju was
acquitted. On that basis and after taking legal advice from the
Company'’s legal advisers, the Company has on 27 December
2017 reached settlement with the Defendants pursuant to
which the Company will apply to the Cayman Court for
discontinuance of the Litigation, as a result of which the
Injunction Order and the Company’s Undertaking would be
discharged.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23 May
2018, on 10 May 2018, a Consent Order was granted by the
Cayman Court regarding the discontinuation of the Litigation
and the discharge of the Injunction Order and the Company’s
Undertaking, such that the Defendants should no longer be
restrained in respect of the Restrained Shares and the
Restrained CBs and the Company should no longer be
restrained from issuing or dealing with additional Shares or
securities in the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 20 March 2019, the Group entered into a loan agreement
(the “Loan Agreement”) with the controller of a substantial
shareholder of the Company (the “Lender”) regarding the
continual provision of a loan facility of up to HK$45 million by
the Lender to the Company a 5% per annum, 3-year loan
facility. Under the Loan Agreement, interest shall start to accrue
with effect from 1 January 2019, and the lender reserves the
overriding right to demand early repayment.
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R Ak ()

BUOARRBEHRAS -_T—tF+=H
“TEERNAMAEE R_F—tF
T = AN B B e B A 5 B 2R 3 T 1%
@& ARREEEEAEREERRR
A HBEEREAENIDEL LTS
PR - BERUL » AR R ERHERE
FMEERZERKER _ZT—tF+_A
“ R EEEME - E - ARERR
MR EERBFRILFA  EHSRA
Ay AEGE B T AR AR B o

PBOARRBPE—E—NFREA=-+=
BRQAGHEE R_Z—N\FHA+
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BHSHMANTNEZEHEES - %
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REHFEXZRH - AQFEEITERE
RABREINRD K BEHTBHERS

HRERRER
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Al—AEFEREMZHA(ERET D5
BRAAARRFERE—SZLRA
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36.

37.

188

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

The Lender, being the controller of a substantial shareholder of
the Company, is a connected person of the Company as
defined under the Listing Rules. The Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) noted that the terms of
the Loan Agreement were determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the Company and the Lender and are of
the view that the terms of the Loan Agreement are normal
commercial terms or better from the Company’s perspective,
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and
substantial shareholder as a whole. Accordingly, the Loan
Agreement is fully exempt from all disclosure, annual review,
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

7 IS E B A AR A F, an effective 26.01% owned
subsidiary of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests (NCI). The NCI of all other subsidiaries that are not
100% owned by the group are considered to be immaterial.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El

36.

37.

WREHESEE®)

B (AANR]—ZEERRAIEHIA)
72@ AlZBEALT(EERER EWAA)) -
ER(EEBMIERITES) TEIER
BB 2GR TEARRNR RER T A FiE
ﬁé#m Iu%%$@7ﬁm’éﬁ%

IR TR — MR P RS B =R
,%TI BATABEERALEBREES
RERREREFZ - Bt - BEXaEE2E
%%LTtmﬁW%MA%ﬂETm%
EHE - FESEMN - BREREER
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FERER
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RAUIBKEBRRERAEREANIE
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of 525z
B E B R B R 2 &, before intra-group eliminations, is

presented below:

For the year/period ended
31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income allocated

to NCI

For the year/period ended
31 December

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash outflows
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37. FEEERER (&)

BRARNBKEBRRBR AR FER
et 2 M AR E CREF REE AR E

A 25T

4 April 2017
1 January (date of
2018 to  acquisition) to
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—T—+tF
—E-N\F g Ut~
—HA—BZ (WEBAE=E
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=BA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
BE+-A=1+—HILEE 85
Wz 10,904 12,630
FREIE (477) (889)
2HE WS EEE (4,409) (2,254)
SEFHERESE 2 NG
(3,262) (1,668)
BE+-A=1+—HILEE 15
REKE T HeRE 1,234 (3,801)
REREZBZRERE - 41
KREBMETH HERE - =
W& TR 1,234 (3,760)
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37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 37. FFERER 2
2018 2017
—E-NFE —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
As at 31 December R+t=—BA=+—H
Current assets mBEE 3,508 12,248
Non-current assets IERBEE 23,791 27,845
Current liabilities mEasE (10,685) (22,282)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE = -
Net assets BEFE 16,614 17,811
Accumulated non-controlling interests ZEEERER 12,293 13,178
38. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW 38. HE&EREXRMKT
STATEMENT
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise (a) REREEREEHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FET
Cash available on demand BRERREH RS 68,084 171,926
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38. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

38. HERERMT 2

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities:

(b) EXEREFH 2REBEHRK:

Amount due to

Bank Amount due to non-controlling

borrowings  a shareholder interests
AR
RITEE EARRARE ERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FET
(Note 27) (Note 26) (Note 26)
(H=E27) (7% 26) (FiEE26)
At 1 January 2017 R_E—tF—H—H = 40,402 -
Changes from cash flows: REBEESREZEE :
Advance from a shareholder KE—ZBIREZBR - 224 -
Advance from non-controlling & B JEIEARHEZR 2 B
interests - - 6,222
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+=A
=+—H - 40,626 6,222
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-NF—-—H—H
Changes from cash flows: REBRESHREZSE :
Repayment to a shareholder — [Al—Z B - (1,263) =
Repayment to non-controlling  [A1FFIEARIE 25 1 7K
interests - - (6,222)
Proceeds from bank borrowings $R17{& & PS8 69,903 = =
Repayment of bank borrowings {E&EITEE (1,638) - -
Interest paid ERFLE (919) = -
67,346 (1,263) (6,222)
Others: Hitb
Interest on bank borrowings  $R{T{E & H| 2 919 - -
Exchange adjustments FE 5 Fg %8 (2,334) - -
(1,415) (1,263) (6,222)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-N\E+=A
=+—H 65,931 39,363 -
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39.

192

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

° To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company only, comprising share capital and
reserves of HK$475,267,000 (2017: HK$475,267,000) and
HK$1,147,086,000 (2017: HK$1,214,193,000) respectively as at
31 December 2018.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing
and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group has not adopted any
formal dividend policy. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt. For details of cash flow forecast carried out by
the directors, please refer to Note 3(b)(ii) “Going concern
basis”.

39. EXEmERE

FREEBRERZERR:

s REAEHMEFHELE HERK
REHMERFEE A B RE R
KRz

o IHRAKBEZBEMRER: R

o  RHEHEARNUMBANEEZERERE
€7 e

anp

R-ZB—-NE+-A=1+—0 &EEEZ
AEBEBREADBIES ABGEZ
B BERANEES B /475,267,000
BT (ZZT —+ 475,267,000 7T )
% 1,147,086,0005% T( = & — + 4F:
1,214,193,000&7T) °

AEEEGRERRTREERLEARR
B ARREBEARBRBRRLR - &
LERRERBROBEE BRI AEE
ZARECTEREANYE BT MIAA
AN BAKERERE - BAER
P MIRAIRAS IR ERE - AREY &
RMEMEARERER - RIEBEEENHRE
2E AKREKERXMNBE - BITH
B BRI - ARBITHESEEIRE
&% - FTEHEREANRE ARESE
THHREREBRNFEE - FLHEME
(b)) [ R EEE] -
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n‘l'.F

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments in
the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price
risk.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for
account receivables from sales of natural gas, loan and
interest receivables, and the other receivables and
deposits that were further explained in Notes 22 and 24
to the consolidated financial statements respectively, the
Group principal financial assets are the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and bank balances placed
in financial institution and reputable banks separately.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any credit risk exposure for those financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and bank balances. For
credit exposures to customers, Group management has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. For credit
exposures associated with the refundable deposits and
loan receivables, Group management had assessed the
credit quality of the debtors, taking into account their
financial position, their business developments and other
factors. In addition, the Group ensures that the amount
of the loan is within the limit set by the Group.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Account receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for account
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group's different
customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for account
receivables as at 31 December 2018:

BRRER &)
(a) =ERME)

R SRSk

AEEURER2HRABEEESR
2B EREIRRZ BRBHE -
HRASEBEZ EEBRLRL
BRI TNREFPOBZEBRERENA
ERER HWERSBBRRTEZ
fo?JEETEIEHE$’§ITH§}EE¥
ZBEFE—FED

TERREEENR - N\F+=A
=t BARKEREERAER
EERRKEREEBHRZER

Expected Gross carrying

194

loss Rate amount Loss allowance

EHERE IREAE EERE

(%) HK$'000 HK$°000

(%) FET FET

Current (not past due) BIAR (R ER) 0.03 439,739 143
More than 90 days past due  #HI90 HIA L 100 37,100 37,100
476,839 37,243

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see Note 4(j)B(ii)). At 31 December 2017,
trade receivables of HK$37,100,000 was determined to
be impaired.

FEHEEEDRERBERAFERS
BEBHE - WELERCIERE -
DA&%HQ%&@E%&?%F?WZ%E
A~ RO R AR BR AR
FIBTREFR  EBERA 2Bz ZE
oo

RZE—N\F—A—HA1 REE
EEDRERBER S EERARE
B (R K EE4()BG) c R—FE—+
F+-A=+—0 BZRKE
37,100,000 B T EEAERE
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FEIREIRBIZIZRERAF »» Annual Report &3} 2018

Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
account receivables during the year is as follows:

Balance at 1 January
Expected credit losses recognised
during the year

N
R
N
N
N

Balance at 31 December

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of account receivables contributed to the
increase in the loss allowance during 2018:

—  Origination of new account receivables net of those
settled resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
HK$143,000.

Liquidity risk

The directors have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period of not
less than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period, and other measures taken by the management as
referred to in Notes 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, and consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the twelve months from 31
December 2018.

HA—B 2%
FRERZBREEER

AR e B 35 SR R Y EE
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(a)
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(b)

EERB (&)

FREBRKERZ BERERS
T -

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F#T
37,100 37,100

143 -

37,243 37,100

PATT 8 SR ok B T A (B 2 K
BH T \FREBREZN

— EAFRKEF(NROHEE
BRAKIR) S BB E BRI
143,000 % 7T °

EXEHARNAREREA RS
HRE AR+ @A MRENR
TR E TR KR EIE BRI E A
He (anfR & B 765 3R 3% BT E 3(b)i) 2 2
) RRAEERERRZREER
T AIRERNBE-Z-N\F+=A
=t—HEF+_EAARIRHZH
BEME -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

196

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(9]

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are within one
year as at the end of each reporting period, except for
certain exploration and evaluation cost payables as
disclosed in Note 25 and convertible notes as disclosed in
Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements which
are interest free with maturity date over one year. The
contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
equal their carrying amounts as shown on the
consolidated statements of financial position as the
impact of discounting is not significant, except for
convertible notes with the principal undiscounted cash
flows amount of HK$679,670,000 (2017:
HK$679,670,000) as at 31 December 2018, but stated at
the carrying amount of HK$71,467,000 (2017:
HK$64,489,000) as at 31 December 2018 as disclosed in
Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. These
zero coupon convertible notes have maturity date falling
30 years from the date of issue on 3 January 2012.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial liabilities will fluctuate because
of the changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings in Note 27 at floating
interest rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has
not formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.
The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group are considered to be effective.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(o)

(d)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitive analysis

As of 31 December 2018, if the interest rate on our then
outstanding bank borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, our
profit before tax for the respective years ended would
have been decreased/increased by HK$659,000.

Except for bank borrowings explained above and certain
other payables that were further explained in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements and, the Group has
no significant interest-bearing financial liabilities, and the
financial assets are bank balances held with financial
institutions. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rate.

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency
exchange rates relates primarily to certain bank balances
and other receivables in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity to which the
balances relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily Hong Kong Dollar.

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a 3%
strengthen/weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have increased/decreased profit before
income tax by HK$164,000 (2017: HK$115,377). This
sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

198

(e) Price risk

()

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as trading securities. All
of these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of
the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
reporting period for those trading securities. If equity
price had been 5% higher, the profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have been increased by
HK$3,074,000 (2017: HK$3,112,000). Had the relevant
equity price been 5% lower, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit.

Fair value estimation
The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value

hierarchy:

Level 1T — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted price included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs).
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f) Fair value estimation (Continued)

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group'’s financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements are
measured at fair value, which is categorised as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and measured
fair value based on Level 1 fair value measurement
hierarchy.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into/out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
into or out of Level 3.
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41. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2018 and 2017 may be

categorised as follows: ERDENAT
2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FEIT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at fair value through BATFEEFAEBECCREE
profit or loss 61,476 74,540
Financial assets measured at amortised RN AT E2 EMEE
cost 539,998 -
Loan and receivables BN E R R TE = 248,931
Financial liabilities SRaE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised 1R EK AT EZ SR A E
cost 765,265 648,239
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFBIEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE—_Z— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

Results

£S5

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Loss/(profit) attributable to
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities

BEERAE

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Attributable to owners of
the Company

200

W zs
BRETSBRTEN, (B1E])
B (A%) E%
AEREEM,/ (E18)

IR EREGER
C&#)

ZNNSIEZ 2N
A (ER)
BERE
BB
IS
ARAIEE ARG

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E —T—+F —T—RF —T—RHF —T—NF
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FEr FErT FET FEr
477,789 13,039 1,117 7,399 37,261
138,229  (241,627)  (165,489) (1,283,919) (40,240)
(111,041) 6,774 2,801 2,483 3,586
27,188  (234,853)  (162,688) (1,281,436) (36,654)
356 (657) - _ _
27,544  (235,510) (162,688) (1,281,436) (36,654)
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\NE —ZT—+F —FT—RF —T—HF —T—NF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET
2,411,573 2,349,479 2,337,043 2,656,320 4,199,837
(776,914)  (648,239)  (531,380)  (559,467)  (654,718)
(12,306) (11,780) = (753) (753)
1,622,353 1,689,460 1,805,663 2,096,100 3,544,366
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